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B | A=RIE &AT i fafT=T ToaT TeehT Shed T A9 ool gEEvd T T GHYX SATINRE Tl

T TR 3, |

T, GTIWTT QRUEA

AT AT SehaTe ANRY FHEINTH Fepar fafawy afafa,/ su-afafa afwa sour #e=a e g7 | @ afafa,/39-
AT FEINTT RS AT RIS ANGH eI 9 FHicag edl S | ATHT HarHeE [, esd o
TN ARIFRATATEEH TFIIATE THAT TG STEHTATT TUHT GLANTT AT AT AT H= TG STATGH b
R TIreTefTer T8l ) | bl WA RIEAATS STHehTAl ATl ATA=T 3T FTT foUahr g | 41,
AT fadee AT Ui S TRANTT QAR q9T TRERTATH AT A% 93¢ &3 S HHT Teleedrs aeawd
qT =Ty |

FoATAE AT T FouToed P! A0 THE AHTES

SECIEEACITIN]

SFHT FoaTAF AAITHT FEITIF SAREHAEH dhara =1 THrer 53, 7 wer o ¥ A7 foog FHR 8w
EAATH G | AR SRRIAEEH dhare AT Mg Targ T, »i 7ad ara siref T «f\dr sqar I
TEATRT G A debebl TAAA HoATABAT HTHAT HIEAT ABAT WWAATH! @ | Fo=reres AT TebT9T 55 g==(1e1eh
afafaerr et gigs |

AZEA] AP qiqasT R009s /R 19
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FoaTeres ATATT Sebepl Hitd AT SifgH SHa<earde qoar AaedTad PRAThaTael ATET T qAT ATTIdE
fAgeres faq #wr #fma W@ g | ylqasd FUAT AiATGEr dF TEAT 3¥ UdE g9Hl T g dadd
HATAFIeTATs & .30 qM@ & TR ISF AT J&TH TRTH G |

AGTINETIT GOt

FehepT AT AATATRT UL, AT=A(Xeh A=A, TGTIRIET] TEI=ET FAEH I QI JEedT faeqa
JUITEATeRT FHTEAT T FoaTeres FrATaHT Savde T/ G9RTd a9 fawTiee Jer 79 Hraer e Jurer g seher
fEeTeRT AT BT AT FrAfTRT TST TRTH T |

B T ATATTH! FATSTHAT FoaTede = Ta= JAE A EAFCH G A9 FoaTdsd H qaddrad el I9
il TTe TEATTH T | AT d@aaE fganresr . gqg = ©er R aeer afag e o |
Jiqaae FATIAT AGTILTET0 AT 5% STFAT 9%, T2 adehl g T AT a9 GoaAhIeedls & &% o
%5 BN &% T G TUH F |

79 AAfaer SAT=AfeeF ETTETTER! HT AT TEh(d, ATINE @l qRE (q9RTare g gaaTaes! JH1aes
G TRIETVT Jiqaad, qTed TATIRIETeRaTe Tl TUH! A@TIRIET0 Jiqaae qar TuTel 6 Aehare e fARreror
gidqeEd T Hl IR AAXAIAH] STATh FHT [aaqd Fa®he T FIEqIAATS ATALAF (a9 JaT ¥hT
faTehT TT T T FooATdAe ATATTHT I GhTa qAT (GRTRd T T I 9T AT Share (g9
AU FHITAS] AT FTHES 0 TH TR G |

TGgH sgaeqrI |t

Sepepl SIMGH SEATIT THIET ATITE 0/ GhTa Ja7 (ahiied o7 9w Higq Farer g Sebel
freeTeRT AT BT AT FrAfaRT TST TRTH T |

T GIATTRT FATTHAT ool HEAT HEdT @Al WETATH T | TA, Jooreleh &1 i Idq1& 9T,
TATAF Al foed FAR IS T THE I Atdegd AT AL (7Y 79 AAIqH 999 gers | THE SiaH
Al =1 HH AT ISF ATATTR! T Trad TLATTHT T | Tqaa U A7 AT T5F ¥ Tdeh bl
B ¥ A A0 HATARSIGEATs H ¥ qE 4% BAR I3 AT T TR 7 |

a7 giafder SATas STAT ThT IS qATAAT TEET AT (TS0, ST G R g9 A, 9|
TE (Stress Test) ATMGHT FFTHT ITH H1 T GoATAS ATHITHT GreTaad T T PN B | AT AT,
Srehepl SITEH Tl A7 TTHHRT (o 9T ] qEeva ] GoeTeleh QAT 0 19 qAT FGnTied aer T
ST PRATEATIEE 9T a9 AiAfdel T TRE G |

FHATR AT Ghaen |t

FehehT FHATIEEH! AAT AT TEIT ATAAE I/ ST TAT (TR J9T T FrAehT (T Tl 6 el
fdeTer AT & A1 AAHTTRT Tod TRUH T |

T FHITH] FATSTHAT goareres A1 HIA AT S0l ggrs A Goelleies 2HAl AHAT IUl TH FHITH a8
TEq 9UH G | GATTH A7 AELIEEHT THE FAHNT Afadd A7 a0 a7 ATk T THE @a9g dfaewd =
=TS OTH] BT FUR G T THE AT Aldgd/ WG q91ad [qemrd gHE A " M ge |taa @
AU g | Fqaad aUHT HHARN JaT Flaar ArATqeT THT R T2 95F Tdh T TF a9 GATAFIREATS
FHA T3 AW & R d&% Tl GaH TRUH T |

93 AT AT Yiqas 09s /R
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T FHOA FHARESH! RATHE T Ja7 Jiaar FR=Arehl A= qqr faeevor @ aesfae AR 1,
Warﬁ%'w F &7 MaRI 4T HTF THET TedTehd TUTCATR] TARTAATDA T, HHAT eI FFIedl 3
mﬁfﬂwmﬁwnﬁﬁmwaﬁﬁmmgwamw&ﬂﬁﬂiﬁa|mﬁw
gfufaer aiftfee sowT ST WA FATAH AT O IR T oo GTATTHT 9T T TRl
@ |

FEIT @R (AR wFeedl qhAfa

SFepepT THITT TETHROT (AR AHI=AT A9 T/ FhTE AT (TR T T FrehT AT AT e SFehehl
EeTeT ATFHT TET AT FIHTTH! TS TRUH |

T FATTHT GASTHAT Gouereh =1 (6570 FAR S gga A ouledeh SAAT FHAT JUAl T ATITAAT [FATTEbT
THE S AT AAT T FAITRT GG TETACRT P | THE S@H AT ST BH S GEE TH (TR
I Qied B AUH G | Giddad AATHT GHIfa TG0 AR qredl AH{ddl d93% & Teh adhl § T
TG AT GATARIEEATS FA & q A 4% AR &% AT T&TT TRTH G |

g1 FH{qe (= ATIRAT F¥afa @0 Ja1 ATTFaIE HATHATTAT [aiid a1 el @Al afg=m
TAT HeATSA I, TTEeh/ATEA e &1/ FRIARE] TF AT IR ATHAD TAEATR T, THTd TR a0

ATAFATE FATHATIR] (AR Tdl q= FrAfages AMfa TR T A1 g F=a1dd AHITHT T TR
T FARTRE U9 T WH F |

. GETI® FF GFe=gHT

Febel ATHT WETIF FVIAIR! FTAT [o.30.%. FAfUeed AT fAfHISATE TTAT Tl T | AT wFAT frara=

ZraqrdT FaHTEel, R0%% (Merchant Banker Regulation, 2007) FT AT TS ArSare SATTAIAYTS HEvE

IS B | Febel AT HITHT AeTdF FFITRT Bl TehT Goilehl $%.89 Fiaerd qafd €. 9% IS aRTEe 9%
~ N §|

e AR JHE TaraeAr Aeue Sy Far v fadraseT areiae [Ashem saaamad, @
g, fgaraTer gearqid 4T, R ATER, dHEd ARET BITHl AT SFaerad qaT (M qaeiel
AT 1T T, AW IR AT IS RIS AMAAHT FIUEE TaS |

S ¥ WETTH FEIAE] AT GHIET a9 R00c /9% W AURT A6 qdT FRIFRH! faeqd faawer q8aqrd o
SepepT AT fair faaRurer or@r qwerwdT femofiesar yeqd TiRusr 3 |

T, dd FREAR &R T geeddr fMuer #8r 9w wwaes

giqasd auaT fafTeT FIHIe%d aTasg dhdrd ATRATS a9 A WaeadT aATg e Fel 319 TEAee MRTHT
B | a1 He wafafed Jeaes gHE W g
o T TUT AYRIAT STAAHIET HI HBRIGR TErIAHT (AT TRTH T8 : (Faras (Hepraare qiferuas
&7 9T qig== WUHT AT qUT AYRIAT Sl ATAIATS A& T FAT FGATAT Foflelrg 397 9T
fareame wifewet @ | GIET &rars Afera T fafaeT B YTeaee® qo[AT TN AN RTHT G | bl AT
YA SET ATAT FAT AR FATHT [aTqeHT qUG FoAT JaTe T4 ATGLEHAT AFaeqar Ok e
Hga 9% IH FOMT afg T AL UL T | AT FAT ARAT FFQIERAT HO FREAR Afgd
JATEAefId &bl ghg T Faehra®T 9 ARTE 9ATS+ AUl ARMHT faaar 9fe Siepel 7y &
FAT faedebl AT faere e fam &
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o TEfaau Fwl fawara fafra TRus TEdes : yfqaE AUHT SEHHE A9 qEEAE BT AMA
A FE[AIqYUl FSA JATE TRUH G | AT Ggaale I TUAF STHAT R,¥ R0 HUNEE ATHIwd HUH
el

o  ScUTERNA, FHW, IS qAT faaem a7 &THETHT ARA AART A& God TH GFaedl GgeAge: e
IS Sehel dTbepl Fearaelie (i, S, T & T O 9T qAT SAN) T fqaeT AT St aAah
AT TATIH el T YaTe T a7 faxirar Famer fawar ¥ faxiar aamefereoers afwafg 7 a&
=R g TRREH & |

o JFE! W@ FATAAEEH! Fol FRIATAT qlg: THET AATTHT SebebT THATIT FHARIEEATE FITeT0r
YSTH T FATs MRl @U@l § 99 FREAR Fgd &THdl HUH AEEsHl 99 AAeTche! THd
I TRTH G | Holl AT [qEARB AT JIT Al Whid TR FA qAr3d Ia 80
FRATATEEHT T2 Javdeh MIch T Holl Geaed] ARl THd JeardrsTd MUl g | Gfqasd auam
qfe Sehel T ATEAR TSR] AT AT T AF9TF GRTaesals THd woll qeaed g
T FrafafaEsaT STAvAE FAUT WH G | TG FHATs ARMHT fedqeedr of e fagw g

7. dohdl HRER (IR T GrawHT Aiasqer iy fMusr qeags

Shel ATTHT 9T @ Jfg (Business Growth) T9T g€ SIMGH HALATIAATE ATHFT THE 0TI FATE (HFT
FHITTHHT FAFHACEATS JTATHGATHT ITEH 3, |

o Tehep! HAAIATE (g & AT FHAT AIHT AT ATTLEEEH! ol 7T T T faEdq® Tg A |
o A& Tur FTH fafa Tdaw IfFs FaEE TEATHET @I |
o  IHHT PURT SANhATE A%F T&T T T TAEHNT IATSH SUFT Uty a9 aiferwesel saawan T+ |

o TN AT HRIAT AT FAT FRIAR (g TS Hofiebl TUEIHT TR e AT |
o  TREATS ATFTHIHT (Non interest Income) TAT FIAEE TG LI siehebl HATHTAT qhg Ta T |

o AT YrATIH TAATH YARTATE Sfebepl AT oy T |
o S ATARF [TARAT YOIl ToAT EATATS AR &7 IJE I |
o I ATHINF STRANAE AT [alH= STHHE! FEFHHEE FoTdd T |

T, WG FrATE Ia<erdcd

AW ATASE FORNAAD! (HaE THBT AT Sebel ATHT TR o [T~ Framfere qor g
RITE®HT AW ANEE TATSSE ATTH G | debol Giqase audT & U3 oM@ o g9 ARG ATt
JORATIAT Avaia @9 Tl T | el 18T, Z@ree, faiiar |qerRdt, COVID-19 Tva=T e gyt @fig #fe
YT T TEE @ TWH G |

q. qEIETF s qeaegH

bl ATTIF aF R0R /50 BT TGIIIELTI Tehl AT AT T 0%3, HT THT 999 T 9 a9 faia Fen
FERT UH, 2093 &I THT £3 AT A dq@IIeTd (HIRh TH TEI=IdT @ra<ree afafaers I J=aragsH T
THEId TS UhIIrardgsdl Y&ATd T TEAATH0 qe=Tq (Hiq 09 Fifces R A THH @I ArATcTenT
TSFATE TGTINE esh, AFTHT ATSE KUTE (LFAR) esh, HR A@TIRIETTT 9Teeh, FFIAT TH, R0%3 & THT 95
THITTHRT THTOTRI ek, FrAITASITT AT NFRS Review ¥l HTHEb! RMeb, Corporate Governance Report
Certification aTdh! ek T AT g9 (Travelling and out of pocket expenses) JHT ST % 4R,%0,000/—

9% AgAl it yiaaaT 309s /0]
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(A A.F dTeh) TAAE Y& TH TR AGMIIETE 2 Sl T8 AUESHIATs Maith A&l AN [RIE 9U
FHINTH AP AfIF a8 09 /50 F faxir faarures a@radierr Tar ffaa ared srered fras T
ST X5 AT AT AR ARl SR(Th! AT Teies qHET A Tee |

. goATAF QIATTAT BRaqd

79 AIfF qUHT SGhbT oA HITHT F HEasR el G | A%, GeATIF TARGIEEH qhdre grariae
THE A ST TeTeTheesh! ARAT FIde (Hiq 0%, /03 /38 T URT HUAT Ui SehebT HolRebT H1d AT TGbT

a1 HoR gleem AR AT A Shdl fAfT 206 /0% /3R AR TAATE I TR AT A T
JAAd HAA FHITH T A= TCIFE Al AN 99 qUH S |

T, TS FEEedT faaR

TG STER THE FATA AfdHa H Tl HHATs AT e ARIETET AMBURT @ | ATIE qT 065 /9 AT
e FATTETETE 390 TATAIET ATTHT T BT GFF q30R TATAIEE Grfad JATEREHT AeTF FAT T
JHTITT TR 3, |

g, AAFEl GTATITAT ATATSTTeRT TSl GFEerHT

Jq Sepelle HAH China Construction Bank, Henan Branch I Counter Guarantee T HATAT GIYTHAT ATATSTATRT
fretor srdeRr @it fafaat $&s® J/V of China Railway 15 Bureau Group & China CMIC Engineering Corporation KIE)
FRGHITET RUEH! AT F9 300%, AT USD 6,625,000/~ T EUR 1,411,453/~ I Advance Payment Guarantee STT<I
TR F2T | %, HAF=l @Il ATATSTATRT dcehleid [Aqdt $ehal® J/V of China Railway 15 Bureau Group aT=r#T
frrator el fafa= foare Ioa= qUel ga1 HAHIT @RIl ATATSIATeNE F R09R AT FRULIRl THH STHA
T STRTHTRT AT TF YT AURT §aT FTel 6 Febel T 09¥, W] Sehebl GTAT THH I I HeF=l @I
ATATSTATEATE STRTHT TRTHT P27 | TR TehHaATS Siehel holTehl TUWT oI@T3 T STAUTTT AT Sa<e FIaH
T o7 | BTer HIFehT 2T WTwAehl = AGTAT Henan Higher People's Court o TH R0 TeATE U HT T Sfehebl
TETHT BEAT T §3T I BAATHl AT o AF FISHVGH I THI STFHT ThW &9 7 R Hg (Aid
03 IR 3 ATRGHT I T AT THH AT.9.3095 /9%, B[ ATRT AT [EAqTadT qH1eer TRUH & |

. P W A g Ut 0 T, A=
o Ll 309y /% 0% /09 098/\95 309G /\%
RER CERH ’3.35 q0%.3% 990.%%
FHAT 9%, 3% SRUT 900.99 905.3%
X Il HATRT q.20 q.%% Q.13 233
AT gfqeTa Q.00 %.00 1¥.00 R0.%Y
FA FHATH] FATAITHT (T FHAl 1.4% .35 q.0% q.0%
T HeT &% cQ 29 q0¥%

WA, R0WY /% HT %, 53 AT 33 TS T@hl TT Sl Fel (M8 33.9% Ufderaer afg 95 oM. 9. 2095 /9
IRIHT B q @ 90 AT Q% HRIS HUH! G I &l Holl ¥q.%¥ FAeTdel qhg 9 1.9.2095 /9% I I
Q@I © AT 3% BAS  WUH B | AT 09 /9% W T Sehehl FY SR HATHT HiKT 5. q qF {0 F
& Pl T 1A, 2095 /9% BT AIHAT &% A 3R FE W 3 | TH S 9 FISHISH ATHT TARGAEEATS
AT, . R00Y /%, AT, 0L /Y8 T 19,3009/ 9z AT HH: 9@ Fiaerd, 9% Ffqerd ¥ Q¥ qfqerd aTdieT faq
BT TR G I AT, g, 095 /9% BT ATNT R0, Y G SATHILT SO TRehl T | AT.F.308Y, /9% I =AHT

Agredl A giaaaT 09s /- 9y
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Q0¥ GTTeTd TEehT SAehehl (TR oIl AT, o, R09s /9% I A=HHT 9.0% (AT TEH T | ATT.R00 /%%
AT &% q2T TET F&IT TLhTHT FHI: M@l Gl gig e Rl &7 0¥ TATZTH 3 |

fafaer snfde qur ToTHdes IARTGTEH AEAT T AR ATMIE TUAT Tobel BTG TLH JTAET Feel@HTa
NN a|

q. IF A FIGATE X THEAA ATEYAS Fob Ao WUPT AR FEART FEAREHT

fafr e Sfauet giqeaal, AT da9R, TAEHRl AT UF A2 [Haeor Jueiie e FeamTd
UE J&7 9qE T A1 Iofl amad et nfafatasr feamae uF dea T e dww s9Ar e w8
YATTETE® THE (aEqTed Sfhg Tg= RATSTHT ATY IeIqEHl A{ehg FaT YGTH Tl AN BTHT 35 Aheeehl
AT, AR TAT T Tad, d9d, (9 T eT7dTare TAEERT FOHT Tehlhd TN ATHT ARaeedrs
faraeor T4 ATTHT FFATATAAEF FARART GAAAar 3 =T faqae T Aol Ioopta ATTsd Sehebl STHT
iU g9 Ievad A9 Ak A% FIGHIUG ¥ TATGA ATSUWS Ao AT Woleehl WEHIq AT &7 | T FHHAT fAfq
0% A HAR R T SF A HISHVE T WG ATGUHS b A1 Teh ATIGHT T /AT TRISTE FRpiar
7% fofq 098 I @R R TT AU AT AhaATe Jgliwdes TeAd T AUHT HERT AHHPRT RISES |
JATYATT g el Due Diligence Audit TS 9:q 9TI% @MY AT FIAH TAHT AT T S AF FISATIG
T T ATEUHS b T ATTRHT I /TIHA (ASR) STl ATaeaF JpaTes RN fHfd 2068 Hifds 5
T A T T WA (H9R) TR AT G0 (@ A% (e e TR S |

TS AT THATE W AfTH TR TIHATT T FIH BRIARET AT ATTYAEF ATARE TIRIES T
R qEeredT faei qdqra AR AT TEH(TeT AT SR HeT Taes qweT J97 T o |

q) TR TFERH GERIATH! H&T FaTEs
R | 1 s s R o B | s LUe o e R

BTl TolRaTe IRl HadR, T ATA(Reh (A0 JUTeilel A8 YRINTT FIAT JeT qge Tl a1
ISl I SEAntaeE Afafader EarEd Uh gad T Qe bl TUAT MY AF YANEEs gHe faeqied
APy TET TATSAHT AT TARIAEEATS fTdRoT T4 ATTHT TEATASIAE TTReeh! GAar=adr ¥ fAe=azar fadas
T ek AT Sehebl UM T g7 Feoaer fafd 3098, FMfde & T geraweT M A (Wsd) Ty
AT TERTAT-TF (THH A% QRooTHve) JFI TRUHT | T, Ith GEAld 99 9497 §79% @9 J7rd IHd a9
TATHT TATHITPT AT THA YA TRTHT G | T AR SAebebl T, TS, FAHIR] AGIR qTIT ATTTIHT
alg g WY ATWTHT ai=r oMfdes TUHT faxiTa sraear T8 THIH g JETuT MRTH F |

.9 |foraR /% R0VR /50 |R05O/5]| ROTY/ER | ROGR/ER | ROGI/EY
Q. |stgeRd gSi ATGHT 400,000 00000 400,000 400000 400,000
3| =R S ATGHT EERA o) 39 QR ¥0q,]%% ¥%,035 ¥49,%00
3 |gSireR (gfer) % 9%. %% R¥.3% EERES Re.5R 30.03
¥, |®&A qead AT YZO¥I|  S35,5%R WR,83R | bgR¥ 5gg,0%9
Y. |®e IR e ATGHT ERN) EACAR ¥,09% ¥ 350 ¥ 49%
% |Fead uiq R 3, 9%¥.3R 9%5.%¥% qR.0¢ 95%.95 9R%.X9
o |9fd 9RR wTRTHT s, R9.93 EEA N R3.9% R¥.9¥ .3
o |9fq R ATHIE (@WE gied) | iaerd AE i 1R R IR

9%
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AR GFAET ERITR Hed JaTEe
9.9) FFEr AH FFE TAT A

T TSH YORATHT SF A FISHUG [AHIE T TG ATGUAE o [AMHdeS g GRATEE Th ATIGHT 79
T o GEATHT AW Tad ATZUAS (930 g [HIE (Global IME BOK Bank Limited) SITHETE HRIEAR
T TR B T WIET THITH Sebebl ATH qTv8 TAT AN (Brand & Logo) T J&T G |

) g=ATeE Gl ¢

T FEATHT TF ATTAHT JOT AT MIAT AT Ab] FoaTcAeh AR (HATa THUGFHET AT S AR
FTSHTUSH THATE STFAT R ST T (6 ATGUHE dehehl AhdTE AL Fied STHAT YL STHAT F=aTeleh T He
© TATH goaTdAdeTd FlAMad W @ | ol YA av IATH FodATAd  FIATHT (JTTROTHT
THTEFHHT FANT) S F FISATGH THATE T ST ATHIAT GoaATeAbHl TTHAT &GS, |

9.3) b STATITIA :

SfeF SHARATITHT EFHT T TATTA ATSUHE Aebebl FeTearal THE FTAFNT dAfdd 7 Aok afg 99 g7
T gEAT TR F |

9.¥) HHAR STTEI;

FHATNEE @SS AR TATHT TN A7F GITUTHT FaldT A | H9R JORATET qeafead FH=m
FHAT I AT T AT TG, | ATALYF TRA<] TaT 61 FHARGEH GHAT JTIH AT
TS Wlog® AT (Voluntary Retirement Scheme) ST&T folr Srateaas 9 FEAfq 9 9JuH B |

Y YMET FATAATE
S T FISHIISH! 40% TLT AT FATAUEE TEH Gl A TAad ATZTAT AFa! 5 T T FATATEE
TEH T | o FRATETH] UHSISHT GoaATAd MET FIATATEEHT gehHT T Sehebl ATTIAHRAT TR FTATT

T YIEFeTHl AT/ Jadrars AT W AaqHqT ATaeaHbdaR dbd ATFl AEANTE 0T a1
HoATAHT Jig TAGF FITHT o GEATEEHT TEHIT FIAH ATH G |

1.%) g X gfafy gFEegHn

JqAAT ytafe FFwwT g S AR W@jﬁ Core Banking Software (CBS), Finacle Core Banking System, 7th
Version TARTHT Tlﬁ'Q_Cblf ERECIEE 3T|§'QTF:‘:' él?b_t:f Finacle Core Banking System, 10th Version ¥=HATTTHI EL
T | AT T FEATEEHT - ATHT R [T U §aT ASRIYATT TS SApale FRIAR oA THI
HUFIS S AF FISHVGH! TF (Data) TATEA ATGUHS Siebebl THIIATHT TR (Data Migration) T+
HEA(T AT T |

Q.9) IR AFIT:

Td FEAEEATE AT FEH(THT (Hah TbT Fraiq q91 qIfaca Gearsaeard g9 AATessd quid, e
T FRMER ¥ q=F (iqe Tegsars qd qaerad T Gl qiqasd T 39 e 91 TTH Jeafd I
FF AR FISUVEG fAfHIgHl q AR SRTER TWEA ATSUHE bl q 9O 5 FAH TRTH | dO0d 4
Sepgwehl 100 fhaT 919X aRTER 900 fFdT A% g9 TR 9147 ASTH YaTH F9Td (Share Swap Ratio) FIIH
TRTR |

Al ATNE Fiqasd R09s /9_ qu
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9.5) Sl AR AT (S TR T=T)

fas | ool faeror | 3% 9w wrewmg fa TR ATEUAE A% T AR qY=Td
31'&1'337‘[ ‘J:\_vﬁ' 49,390,000 000/ 40,000,000 000/ 40,000,000 000/
R | T g 99,389, ¥33, A& /- ¥ L0 &34,R¥0/ - W, 099,04 &1E/ -
=[<hl ﬁfﬁ 99,379, ¥33, A% /- R¥,40% §RY,R¥0/ - 3,89, 04 KU% /-

FEITIF TAT AR AR @A (A9 AR T

RER gemm)

far = il Ik AH FTSHTIG THIOA ATECAS SF | WOR UvErd | i
q | ST R %9,¥35,343 QRY,5X93% 153,35%,2¥% %9.%¥
3| ETEww SR 4%,95%,35¥ 9%,335, 359 9%, %¥33,549 ¥5. %
FA AR 93,59 ¥,339 R¥Y,0%5,34% WH0,4%% 100%

R) WIH HOR |iAfaT

9 AT TF ATIGAT WA gEATars fger siar dxate arnte dersw g9 ARATEwR! Gttt @ Wy
Y \ﬁ \'ﬂ'élf-ﬁ c ﬁﬁ \\al
IF AF FISATISH THATE :

TqeTeres A7 qIT I FATSTH
Geretes AT [ FAR A REL]
FEATAE 2 AEA AT Sefr I
T ATSUHS Sehepl AHREE

FATAS #T I FI 2 T
FATAE =T FTMeE 2 e
aTeter AT FHO7 gAE oA qTT
ATHIAT FEAETHT

ofT TS ST, TG BrAET Afaekd, Tl ArguHs S fatrie
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ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of Bank of Kathmandu Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bank of Kathmandu Limited (the “Bank”) and
its subsidiary (the “Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated
statement of other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated

statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements presents fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and of
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN’s Handbook
of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters
described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N | Key Audit Matters
1. Interest Recognition

The interest income of the bank has to be
recognized on accrual basis and following the | g Obtaining clear understanding of the

Auditor’s Response
Our audit approach regarding verification of
process of interest recognition included:

Interest Income Recognition Guidelines 2019
issued by NRB. Though accrual basis of income
recognition is prescribed in general, the guidelines
require suspension of interest recognition on
accrual basis for loans and advances with overdue
of more than 12 months whereas for loans and

’| advances with overdue interest/installment for 3

to 12 months, interest recognition on accrual basis
is limited based on result of collateral testing as
specified. Given the lack of system capability to
suspend recognition of income based on overdue
status of loan and fair value of collateral as well as
review of fair valuation of collateral on regular
basis, manual intervention will be required in
interest recognition process and hence create risk
of improper application of the guidelines and
determination of the Fair Value of the collateral.
This may, in turn, have effect on recognition of
interest income the bank. Thus, we have
considered it as key audit matter.

. For fair valuation of collateral, we relied

c. Test check of the interest income booking

process of accrual of interest income on
loans and advances in the Core Banking
Software of the bank.

on the latest available engineer's valuation
of the collateral and have test checked the
hair cut in fair value of collateral as per
NRB Income Recognition guidelines 2019.

with manual computation.

T+97714420807 /08 /10 F+97714440528 E info@sar.com.np
Address 64 Bishal Basti "Ka", Bishal Nagar, GPO Box 4585, Kathmandu, Nepal
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Investment Valuation, Identification, and
Impairment

Investment of the bank comprises of investment in
government bonds, T-bills, development bonds and
investment in quoted and unquoted equity
instruments. The valuation of the aforesaid
securities has been done in compliance with NFRS g
and NRB Directive no. 8. The investment in the
government and NRB bonds and T-bills should be
recognized on reporting date on Amortized cost
basis whereas other investments in equity
instruments, other than those held for trading,
should be valued at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income.

Given the varieties of treatments recommended for
valuation of investment based on nature of cash
flow, the business model adopted, complexity of
calculations and the significance of amount involved
in such investments, same has been considered as
Key Audit Matter in our audit.

Our audit approach regarding verification of
process of investment valuation,
identification and impairment included:

a. Review of the investment of the bank and
its valuation having reference to NFRS
issued by the Accounting Standard Board
of Nepal and NRB Directive 4 read with 8.

b. We assessed the nature of expected cash
flow of the investments as well as the
business model adopted by the management
on the basis of available
evidences/circumstances and ensured that
classification of investment is
commensurate with nature of cash flow
and management intention of holding the
investment.

c. For the investment valuation that are
done at amortized cost, we checked the
EIR and amortization schedule on test
basis.

d. For the investment valued through OCI
for quoted investment, we ensured that
fair valuation has been done at the closing
transaction rate in NEPSE as. on
16.07.2022 and for the unquoted
investment the fair value has been taken
as the NPR 100.

Impairment of Loans and Advances

As per NRB Directive 4, bank shall measure
impairment loss on loans and advances at the
higher of:

= Amount derived as per norms prescribed by
Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning;
and

= Amount determined as per para 5.5. of NFRS g,
read with carve out issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Nepal dated 18 July
2022, adopting Incurred Loss Model

As per the norms prescribed by NRB, provision at
prescribed rate should be created on loans and
advances based on overdue status of loans and
advances as well as utilization status of the facility,
status of security, borrower’s whereabouts etc.

As per NFRS 9 read with carve out issued by
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal dated
18 July 2022, impairment of loans and advances
should be made on individual impairment basis for
loans and advances that are individually significant
and collective impairment basis for homogeneous
groups of loans that are not considered individually
significant.

On individual impairment, amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the assets’
carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows. Under collective impairment, loss
is determined after taking into account the
Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar
credit risk and Management’s experienced
judgment as to whether current economic and
credit conditions are such that the actual level of

Our audit approach regarding verification of
impairment of loans and advances included:

a. Review of the overdue status of loans and
advances by obtaining data from the
system and matched the same with the
NRB 2.2 report.

b. Sample credit files were reviewed, among
other things, from the perspective of
utilization of loans and advances for
intended purpose by way of scrutiny of
financial statements, account movement,
account turnover etc.

c. Expected future cash flows from the
individually  significant loans and
advances with indication of impairment
are assessed on the basis of realizable
value of collateral securities based on
management estimate.

d. Grouping of homogeneous groups of loans
was assessed on the basis of nature and
purpose of loans and data of historical loss
experience in portfolios are assessed on
the basis of past due data from the system
as well as data of loan loss provisions of
the defined group in the past.
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inherent losses at the reporting date is like to be
greater or less than that suggested by historical
experience.

Given the fact that impairment of loans and
advances under incurred loss model require
assessment of future cash flows as well as historical
loss experiences of portfolios. Further, impairment
of loans and advances under NRB norms for loan
loss provisioning will require assessment of overdue
status of loans and advances and proper utilization
of loan for intended purpose. Hence, assessment of
availability and accuracy of required data for
impairment of loans and advances under incurred
loss model as well as NRB provisioning norms is
regarded as key audit matters.

4. Information Technology General Controls Our audit approach regarding Information
IT controls with respect to recording of | technology of the bank is based upon the
transactions, generating various reports in | Inforination Technology Guidelines 2012
compliance with NRB guidelines and other | issued by NRB and it included:

compliances to regulators is an important part of
the process. Such reporting is highly dependent on | a. Understanding the coding system adopted
the effective working of Core Banking Software and by the bank for wvarious categories of
other allied systems. customers

b. Understanding the feeding of the data in
the system and going through the
extraction of the financial information and
statements from the IT system existing in
the bank

c. Checking of the user requirements for any
changes in the regulations/ policy of the
bank

d. Reviewed the reports generated by the
system on sample basis. We verified the
interest incoine and expense booking
regarding loan and deposit on test basis
with the CBS or the bank.

e. We relied on the IT' audit conducted by
the bank.

f. We verified the provisioning of the loan
and advances based on ageing on the test
check basis as on 16.07.2022

We have considered this as key audit matter as any
control lapses, validation failures, incorrect input
data and wrong extraction of data may result in
wrong reporting of data to the management,
shareholders and regulators

Information Other than Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon 5

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Report, Report of the Director’'s Report and Chairman’s Statement but does
not-include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Such information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we will
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information identified above when it becomes
available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

When we read such other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we
are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance. -
6 9,
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Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists., Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

- whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and

obtained audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk

of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from

error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’ report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

L]

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
.underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 1ncludmg any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards. i
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes pubic disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Banks and Financial Institutions Act, 2073 and Company
Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the branch
offices of the bank, though the statements are independently not audited, were adequate for the purpose
of the audit; the consolidated financial statements including the consolidated statement of financial
position, consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity, consolidated statement of cash flows including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes have been prepared in all material respect
in accordance with the provisions of the Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of
accounts of the Bank; and the accounts and records of the Bank are properly maintained in accordance
with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit,
we observed that the loans have been written off as specified; the business of the Bank was conducted
satisfactorily, and the Bank's transactions were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not
come across cases of accounting related fraud and the cases where the board of directors or any director
or any office bearer of the Bank has acted contrary to the provisions of law or caused loss or damage to
the Bank or committed any misappropriation of the funds of bank

Aman Uprety \f :
Partner T~

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: October 16, 2022

UDIN No.: 221016CA004510urTh
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Bank of Kathmandu Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 32nd Asadh 2079

1. General Information
Bank of Kathmandu Limited (referred to as ‘BOK or ‘the Bank’ hereinafter) is a limited liability company domiciled
in Nepal. The bank has been formed after merger of erstwhile Bank of Kathmandu Ltd. and Lumbini Bank Ltd. after
approval from Nepal Rastra Bank vide letter dated July 08, 2016 (Ashad 24, 2073) and by Company Registrar Office
vide letter dated July 11, 2016 (Ashad 27, 2073). Joint operation of the merged entity had been commenced from July
14, 2016. Registered office of the bank is at Kamalpokhari, Kathmandu, Nepal. The Bank is listed with Nepal Stock
Exchange Ltd. and provides full commercial banking services (Class A) as licensed by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).
Bank has recognized B.O.K. Capital Market Ltd. as subsidiary. The principal activities of the Subsidiary is to provide
merchant/investment banking services that include management of public offerings, portfolio management,
underwriting of securities, and fund management of mutual fund schemes, depository participant's service under Central
Depository Service (CDS) and administration and record keeping of securities of its clients. Jointly Bank of Kathmandu
Limited and B.O.K Capital Market Limited is called “Group”.
2. Basis of Preparation
2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as
published by the Accounting Standards Board (ASB) — Nepal.
2.2 Approval of financial statements
Accompanied financial statements have been adopted by the Board of Directors on its meeting held on
2079-06-30 BS (16™ October 2022) and have been recommended for approval by shareholders in the Annual
General Meeting.
2.3  Accounting Basis
The Bank, while complying with the reporting standards, makes critical accounting judgment as having
potentially material impact on the financial statements. The significant accounting policies that relate to the
financial statements as a whole along with the judgments made are described herein.
Where an accounting policy is generally applicable to a specific item, the policy is described within that relevant
note. NFRS requires the Bank to exercise judgment in making accounting estimates. Description of such
estimates has been given in the relevant sections wherever they have been applied.
2.4 Reporting Pronouncements
The Bank has, for the preparation of financial statements, adopted the NFRS pronounced by ASB as effective on
September 13, 2013 (Updated 2018).
NFRS conform, in all material respect, to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
2.5 Accounting Conventions
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, as modified by the revaluation of financial
assets and liabilities (including derivatives) at fair value.
The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis where the accounting policies and
judgments as required by the standards are consistently used and in case of deviations disclosed specifically.
3c ATZAT ATk FiqasT J09s /R
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2.6  First time adoption of new standards
The bank has applied new reporting standards for the first time which is applicable from FY 2078-79(FY 2021-
22) onwards. Following are the new standards applicable from FY 2078-79 (FY 2021-22).
1. NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (along with carve out issued by ICAN).
2. NFRS 15 — Revenue from contracts with customer
3. NFRS 16 — Lease

2.7 Carve out used while preparing financial statement
A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by
ASB after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal
incorporates them within NFRS.

Further the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) has provided carve out on various standards with
different time frame; some of which are compulsory and others optional for banks and financial institutions. The
list of carve-out and its compliance status while preparation of financial statements of the bank are as given
below;

NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments relating to Impairment

Carve out from the requirement to determine impairment loss on financial assets — loans and advances by adopting
the ‘Expected credit Loss Model’ as specified in para 5.5 of NFRS 9 unless the reporting entity is a bank or a
financial institution registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act 2073. Such entities shall measure
impairment loss on loans and advances at the higher of:

- Amount derived as per norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for loan loss provisioning; and
- Amount determined as per para 5.5 of NFRS 9.

The Group has adopted this mandatory treatment. As a result of this treatment, the Group has recognized
impairment loss on loans and advances at the higher of the amount derived as per prudential norms specified in
NRB directive no. 2/78 and the amount derived as specified in para 5.5 of NFRS 9.

The Group has recognized impairment loss on other financial assets measured at amortized cost in accordance
with para 5 of NFRS 9.

This provision is compulsory up to FY 2080-81 (FY 2023-24). The bank has utilized this carve out.
NFRS 9: Financial Instruments relating to effective interest rate (EIR).

Carve out from the requirement to incorporate all the fees and points paid or received under contractual terms of
a financial instrument in the calculation of effective interest rate for the financial instrument as specified in para
5.4 of NFRS 9 unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably. Effective Interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortized cost of a
financial liability.

This provision is optional up to FY 2080-81 (FY 2023-24). The bank has utilized this carve out.

2.8  Presentation
The financial statements have been presented in the nearest Nepalese Rupees (NPR). The format of Financial
Statement for NFRS has been followed as per the NFRS format prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank for A class
commercial banks.

The statement of profit or loss has been prepared using classification ‘by nature’ method.
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2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Presentation currency

Financial statements are denominated in Nepalese Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of
the Bank.

Current and Non-Current distinction

Assets

Apart from the property plant and equipment and deferred taxes assets all the assets are taken as current assets
unless specific additional disclosure is made in the notes for current and non-current distinction.

Liabilities
Apart from the defined benefit plan obligations all the liabilities are taken as current liabilities unless specific
additional disclosure is made in the notes for current and non-current distinction.

Accounting Policies and accounting estimates

The Bank, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances and
operating environment. Further, the Bank is required to make judgment in respect of items where the choice of
specific policy, accounting estimate or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial statements.
This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

Accounting policies have been included in notes for each item of the financial statements. The effect and nature
of the changes, if any, have been disclosed.

NFRS requires the Bank to make estimates and assumptions that will affect the assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities, and profit or loss as reported in the financial statements.

The Bank applies estimates in preparing and presenting the financial statements. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are reviewed periodically. Revision to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimates is revised, and are applied prospectively.

Disclosures of the accounting estimates have been included in the notes wherever the estimates have been applied
along with the nature and effect of changes of accounting estimates, if any.

Financial Periods
The Bank follows the Nepalese financial year based on the Nepalese calendar.

Discounting
Discounting has been applied where assets and liabilities are non-current and the impact of the discounting is
material.

Limitation of NFRS implementation
If the information is not available and the cost to develop would exceed the benefit derived, such exception to
NFRS implementation has been disclosed in respective section.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these Financial
Statements, unless otherwise indicated.
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3.1 Basis of Measurement
The Financial Statements of the Bank have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the following
material items in the Statement of Financial Position:

» Financial investments- Fair value through other comprehensive income (quoted) are measured at fair value.

» Liabilities for defined benefit obligations and long term benefit obligation are recognized at the present value
of the defined benefit obligation less the fair value of the plan assets.

» Financial assets and financial liabilities held at amortized cost are measured using a rate that is a close
approximation of effective interest rate.

3.2  Basis of consolidation
a. Business Combinations and Goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method as per the requirements of Nepal Financial
Reporting Standard - NFRS 03 (Business Combinations). The Bank measures goodwill as the fair value of the
consideration transferred including the recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, less the
net recognized amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed, all
measured as of the acquisition date. When the excess is negative, a bargain purchase gain is immediately
recognized in the profit or loss.

The Bank elects on a transaction-by transaction basis whether to measure non-controlling interest at its fair value,
or at its proportionate share of the recognized amount of the identifiable net assets, at the acquisition date. The
consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing relationships. Such
amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss. Transactions costs, other than those associated with the issue
of debt or equity securities, that the Bank incurs in connection with a business combination are expensed as
incurred.

b. Non-Controlling Interest (NCI)
The group presents non-controlling interests in its consolidated statement of financial position within equity,
separately from the equity of the owners of the parent. The group attributes the profit or loss and each component
of other comprehensive income to the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. The proportion
allocated to the Bank of Kathmandu Limited and non-controlling interests are determined on the basis of present
ownership interests.

The group also attributes total comprehensive income to the owners of the Bank and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

¢. Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities that are controlled by the Bank. The Bank is presumed to control an investee when it is
exposed or has rights to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee. At each reporting date the Bank reassesses whether it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more elements of control mentioned
above.

The Financial Statements of Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Bank and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. The Financial Statements of
the Bank’s Subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting year as per the Bank and adjusted using consistent
accounting policies.

The acquired identifiable assets, liabilities are measured at their cost at the date of acquisition. After the initial
measurement, the Bank continues to recognize the investments in subsidiaries at cost.

This Subsidiary of the Bank i.e.; B.O.K. Capital Market Limited has been incorporated in Nepal.
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d. Loss of Control

When the Bank loses control over a Subsidiary, it derecognizes the assets and liabilities of the former subsidiary
from the consolidated statement of financial position. The Bank recognizes any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at its fair value when control is lost and subsequently accounts for it and for any amounts owed by or
to the former subsidiary in accordance with relevant NFRSs. That fair value shall be regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition of a financial asset in accordance with relevant NFRS or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or joint venture. The Bank recognizes the gain or loss associated
with the loss of control attributable to the former controlling interest.

e. Special Purpose Entity (SPE)
The Bank does not have any special purpose entity.

f. Transaction elimination on consolidation
In consolidating a subsidiary, the group eliminates full intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between the subsidiary and the bank (profits or losses resulting from intra-
group transactions that are recognized in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full).

33 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks and money at call and at short notice and
highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of three month or less from the acquisition date. These are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in their fair value and are used by the Bank in the management of short
term commitments.

Details of the Cash and Cash Equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.
3.4  Financial assets and Financial Liabilities

(i) Initial Recognition

a. Date of Recognition
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized on the trade date, i.e. the date on which the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

b. Recognition and Initial Measurement of Financial Instruments
The classification of financial instruments at the initial recognition depends on their purpose and characteristics
and the management’s intention in acquiring them. All financial instruments are measured initially at their fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to acquisition or issue of such financial instruments
except in the case of such financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, as per the Nepal
Accounting Standard — NFRS 9 (Financial Instruments). Transaction costs in relation to financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are dealt with the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(ii) Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Instruments

3.4.1 Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Assets
At the inception, a financial asset is classified into one of the following:
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
i. Financial assets held for trading
ii. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
(b) Financial assets measured at amortized cost
i. Held to Maturity Financial Assets
ii. Loans and Receivables
(c) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI)
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The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification.

(a) Financial Assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
A financial asset is classified as fair value through profit or loss if it is held for trading or is designated at
fair value through profit or loss.

(a) (i) Financial Assets Held for Trading

Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling or
repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit
or position taking. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by Bank that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standards -
NFRS 9 : Financial Instruments.

Financial assets held for trading are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recognized in ‘Net trading income’. Dividend income is recorded in ‘Net trading income’
when the right to receive the payment has been established.

Bank evaluates its held for trading asset portfolio, other than derivatives, to determine whether the intention
to sell them in the near future is still appropriate. When Bank is unable to trade these financial assets due to
inactive markets and management’s intention to sell them in the foreseeable future significantly changes, the
Bank may elect to reclassify these financial assets. Financial assets held for trading include instruments such
as government securities and equity instruments that have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term.

(a) (ii) Financial Assets Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the following circumstances:

> Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets.

> The assets are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed and
their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
or investment strategy.

> The assets contain one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise have been required under the contract.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are recorded in the Statement of Financial
Position at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Net gain or loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Interest earned is accrued
under ‘Interest income’, using the effective interest rate method, while dividend income is recorded under
‘Other operating income’ when the right to receive the payment has been established.

The Bank has not designated any financial assets upon initial recognition as designated at fair value through
profit or loss.

(b)Financial assets measured at amortized cost

(b) (i) Held to Maturity Financial Assets

Held to Maturity Financial Assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturities which the Bank has the intention and ability to hold to maturity. After the initial
measurement, held to maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate, less impairment. The amortization is included in ‘Interest income’ in the Statement of
Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment of such investments are recognized in the Statement of
Profit or Loss.
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(b) (ii) Loans and Receivables to Customers
Loans and receivables include non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market, other than:

» Those that the Bank intends to sell immediately or in the near term and those that the Bank, upon initial
recognition, designates as fair value through profit or loss.

» Those that the Bank, upon initial recognition, designates as fair value through OCI.

» Those for which the Bank may not recover substantially all of its initial investment through contractual
cash flows, other than because of credit deterioration.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using a rate
that closely approximates effective interest rate, less allowance for impairment. Within this category, loans
and advances to the customers have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that very closely
approximates effective interest rate method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest Income’ in the
Statement of Profit or Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in ‘Impairment charge /
reversal for loans and other losses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss.

(c) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(OCI)

34.2

This include equity and debt securities. Equity Investments classified as ‘fair value through OCI’ are those
which are neither classified as ‘Held for Trading’ nor ‘Designated at fair value through profit or loss’. Debt
securities in this category are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.

After initial measurement, fair value through OCI financial investments are subsequently measured at fair
value. Unrealized gains and losses are recognized directly in equity through ‘Other comprehensive income /
expense’ in the ‘Fair value reserve’. Dividend earned whilst holding these investments are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss as ‘other operating income’ when the right to receive the payment has been
established.

Financial assets under this category that are monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency —
translation differences related to changes in the cost of the security are recognized in income statement and
other changes in the carrying amount are recognized in other comprehensive income.

In the normal course of business, the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is the
transaction price (that is, the fair value of the consideration given or received). In certain circumstances,
however, the fair value will be based on other observable current market transactions in the same instrument,
without modification or repackaging, or on a valuation technique whose variables include only data from
observable markets, such as interest rate yield, option volatilities and currency rates. When such evidence
exists, the Bank recognizes a trading gain or loss on inception of the financial instrument, being the difference
between the transaction price and fair value.

When unobservable market data have a significant impact on the valuation of financial instruments, the entire
initial difference in fair value from the transaction price as indicated by the valuation model is not recognized
immediately in the income statement. Instead, it is recognized over the life of the transaction on an
appropriate basis, when the inputs become observable, the transaction matures or is closed out, or when the
Bank enters into an offsetting transaction.

Classification and Subsequent Measurement of Financial Liabilities
At the inception, Bank determines the classification of'its financial liabilities. Accordingly financial liabilities
are classified as:

¥y
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(a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

i.  Financial liabilities held for trading

ii.  Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss
(b) Financial liabilities at amortized cost

(a) Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Financial Liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to
initial recognition, financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value and
changes therein are recognized in profit or loss.

(a) (i) Financial Liabilities Held for Trading

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired principally for the purpose of selling
or repurchasing in the near term or holds as a part of a portfolio that is managed together for short-term profit
or position taking. This category includes derivative financial instrument entered into by Bank that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Nepal Accounting Standard — NFRS
9 (Financial Instruments).

(a) (ii) Financial Liabilities Designated at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
Bank designates financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at following circumstances:

»  Such designation eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities.

»  The liabilities are part of a group of Financial assets, financial liabilities or both, which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy

»  The liability contains one or more embedded derivatives that significantly modify the cash flows that
would otherwise have been required under the contract.

(b)Financial Liabilities At Amortized Cost
Financial instruments issued by Bank that are not classified as fair value through profit or loss are classified
as financial liabilities at amortized cost, where the substance of the contractual arrangement results in Bank
having an obligation either to deliver cash or another financial asset to another Bank, or to exchange financial
assets or financial liabilities with another Bank under conditions that are potentially unfavorable to the Bank
or settling the obligation by delivering variable number of Bank’s own equity instruments.

After initial recognition, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate method. Within this category, deposits and debt instruments with fixed maturity period
have been recognized at amortized cost using the method that very closely approximates effective interest
rate method. The amortization is included in ‘Interest Expenses’ in the Statement of Profit or Loss. Gains
and losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the liabilities are derecognized.

3.4.3 De-recognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

(a) De-recognition of Financial Assets

Bank derecognizes a financial asset (or where applicable a part of financial asset or part of a group of similar

financial assets) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or

» Bank has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and either Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset or it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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On de-recognition of a financial asset other than the assets classified as fair value through OCI, the difference
between the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset
derecognized) and the sum of the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new
liability assumed) shall be recognized into profit or loss account.

When securities classified as fair value through OCI are sold, the cumulative fair value of the assets which
had been recognized in Other comprehensive income till immediate previous year has recognized in equity
and the difference between carrying amount (Cumulative Fair Value of Assets till immediate previous year
ending) of the assets and the sum of the consideration received has recognized in income statement at the
time of disposal.

When Bank has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognized to the extent of the Bank’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, Bank also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that Bank has retained.

(b) De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.

The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is
recognized in profit or loss.

(c) Offsetting of Financial Instruments

3.4.4

3.4.5

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the Statement of Financial
Position when and only when Bank has a legal right to set off the recognized amounts and it intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and expenses are
presented on a net basis only when permitted under NFRSs or for gains and losses arising from a group of
similar transaction such as in trading activity.

Amortized Cost Measurement

The Amortized cost of a financial asset or liability is the amount at which the financial asset or liability is
measured at initial recognition, minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization using
the effective interest method of any difference between the initial amount recognized and the maturity
amount, minus any reduction for impairment.

Fair Value Measurement

‘Fair value’ is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability (exit price) in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence,
the most advantageous market to which the Bank has access at that date. The fair value of liability reflects
its non-performance risk. When available, the Bank measures the fair value of an instrument using the quoted
price in an active market for that instrument (Level 01 valuation). A market is regarded as active if
transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing
information on an ongoing basis on an arm’s length basis.

If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the Bank uses valuation techniques that maximize the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation
technique incorporates all of the factors that market participants would take into account in pricing a
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transaction. Valuation techniques include using recent arm’s length transactions between knowledgeable,
willing parties (if available), reference to the current fair value of other instruments that are substantially the
same, discounted cash flow analyses and option pricing models. Inputs to valuation techniques reasonably
represent market expectations and measures of the risk-return factors inherent in the financial instrument.

The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is normally the transaction
price - i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received.

The fair value of a demand deposit is not less than the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first
date on which the amount could be required to be paid.

The Bank recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.

The bank has considered the fair value of investment as the closing price (LTP) in Nepal Stock exchange as
on 15™ July 2022. The non-listed shares has been revalued at Rs.100 per shares as FMV. The fair value for
listed promoter share if not traded on stock exchange has been considered as 50% of fair value of respective
public shares traded in Nepal Stock Exchange (NEPSE).

3.4.6 Impairment of Financial Assets
Bank assesses at each reporting date, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group
of financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss is impaired. A financial asset or group of
financial assets is deemed to be impaired if and only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events, that have occurred after the initial recognition of the asset and that event (or events)
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include: indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing
significant financial difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganization; default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; and where observable data indicates
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

(a) Impairment of Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost
For financial assets carried at amortized cost, such as amounts due from banks, held to maturity investments
etc., bank first assesses individually whether objective evidence of impairment exists for financial assets that
are individually significant or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. In the
event Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial
asset, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics such as
collateral type, past due status and other relevant factors and collectively assesses them for impairment.

If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the assets’ carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in the income
statement.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows of a collateralized financial assets
reflects the cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the collateral,
whether or not foreclosure is probable.
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(a) (i) Individually Assessed Financial Assets
The criteria used to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment include and not limited to:

Known Cash Flow difficulties experienced by the borrowers:

Past due contractual payments of either principal or interest;

Breach of loan covenants or conditions;

The probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; and

VVYYYV

A significant downgrading in credit rating by an external credit rating agency.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortized cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured by discounting the expected future cash flows of a financial
asset at its original effective interest rate and comparing the resultant present value with the financial asset’s
current carrying amount. The impairment allowances on individually significant accounts are reviewed more
regularly when circumstances require. This normally encompasses re-assessment of the enforceability of any
collateral held and the timing and amount of actual and anticipated receipts. Individually assessed impairment
allowances are only released when there is reasonable and objective evidence of reduction in the established
loss estimate. However, assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Loans together with the associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realized or has been transferred to the Bank. If, in a subsequent year, the
amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting
the allowance account. If a future write off is later recovered, the recovery is shown under non-operating
income.

When impairment losses are determined for those financial assets where objective evidence of impairment

exists, the following common factors are considered:

» Bank’s aggregate exposure to the customer;

»  The viability of the customer’s business model and their capacity to trade successfully out of financial
difficulties and generate sufficient cash flows to service debt obligations;

»  The amount and timing of expected receipts and recoveries;

»  The extent of other creditors ‘commitments ranking ahead of, or pari-pasu with the Bank and the
likelihood of other creditors continuing to support the company;

»  The realizable value of security and likelihood of successful repossession;

(a) (ii) Collectively Assessed Financial Assets
Impairment is assessed on a collective basis in two circumstances:
» To cover losses which have been incurred but have not yet been identified on loans subject to
individual assessment; and
» For homogeneous groups of loans that are not considered individually significant.

Individually assessed financial assets for which no evidence of loss has been specifically identified on an
individual basis are grouped together according to their credit risk characteristics for the purpose of
calculating an estimated collective loss. This reflects impairment losses that the bank has incurred as a result
of events occurring before the reporting date, which the Bank is not able to identify on an individual loan
basis and that can be reliably estimated.

These losses will only be individually identified in the future. As soon as information becomes available
which identifies losses on individual financial assets within the group, those financial assets are removed
from the group and assessed on an individual basis for impairment.
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The collective impairment allowance is determined after taking into account:
» Historical Loss Experience in portfolios of similar credit risk; and
» Management’s experienced judgment as to whether current economic and credit conditions are such
that the actual level of inherent losses at the reporting date is like to be greater or less than that suggested
by historical experience.

Statistical methods are used to determine impairment losses on a collective basis for homogenous groups of
financial assets. Losses in these groups of financial assets are recorded on an individual basis when individual
financial assets are written off, at which point they are removed from the group. Loans are grouped into
ranges according to the number of days in arrears and statistical analysis is used to estimate the likelihood
that loans in each range will progress through the various stages of delinquency and ultimately prove
irrecoverable.

(a) (iii) Reversal of Impairment

If the amount of an impairment loss decreases in a subsequent period and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the excess is written back by reducing
the financial asset Impairment allowance account accordingly. The write-back, if any, is recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss.

(a) (iv) Write-off of Financial Assets Carried At Amortized Cost

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off either partially or
in full, when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where financial assets are secured, this is generally
after receipt of any proceeds from the realization of security.

(a) (v) Collateral Valuation
The Bank seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes

in various forms such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories,
other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. The fair value of collateral is
generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and based on the guidelines issued by the Nepal Rastra Bank.
Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as
independent valuator and audited financial statements.

(a) (vi) Collateral Legally Repossessed or Where Properties have Devolved to the Bank

Legally Repossessed Collateral represents Non-Financial Assets acquired by the Bank in settlement of the
overdue loans. The assets are initially recognized at fair value when acquired. The Bank’s policy is to
determine whether a repossessed asset is best used for its internal operations or should be sold. The proceeds
are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim. The immovable property acquired by foreclosure of
collateral from defaulting customers, or which has devolved on the Bank as part settlement of debt, has not
been occupied for business use.

These assets are shown as Legally Repossessed Collateral that are land and buildings are presented under
investment property and other repossessed collateral are shown under “Other Assets.”

(b) Impairment of Financial Assets classified as fair value through OCI
For fair value through OCI financial investments, Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment is impaired.

In the case of equity investments classified as fair value through OCI, objective evidence would also include
a ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. Where there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
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current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognized in profit or loss is
removed from equity and recognized in the Statement of profit or loss. However, any subsequent increase in
the fair value of an impaired security is recognized in other comprehensive income.

Bank writes-off certain financial investments classified as fair value through OCI when they are determined
to be uncollectible.

3.5 Trading Assets
All financial assets acquired or held for the purpose of selling in the short term or for which there is a recent pattern
of short term profit taking are trading assets.

3.6 Derivatives assets and derivative liabilities
A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to the change in an underlying variable such
as an interest rate, commodity or security price, or index; that requires no initial investment, or one that is smaller
than would be required for a contract with similar response to changes in market factors; and that is settled at a
future date.

Forward contracts are the contracts to purchase or sell a specific quantity of a financial instrument, a commodity,
or a foreign currency at a specified price determined at the outset, with delivery or settlement at a specified future
date. Settlement is at maturity by actual delivery of the item specified in the contract, or by a net cash settlement.

All freestanding contacts that are considered derivatives for accounting purposes are carried at fair value on the
statement of financial position regardless of whether they are held for trading or non-trading purposes. Changes in
fair value on derivatives held for trading are included under trading income.

3.7 Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services, for
rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one period. The Bank
applies the requirements of the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting
for these assets. Property, plant and equipment are recognized if it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably measured.

Measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently
to add to, replace part of an item of property, plant& equipment. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition
for its intended use and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on which they are
located. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized as part of
computer equipment. When parts of an item of property or equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted
for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Cost Model

Property and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment in value. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost
is incurred, if the recognition criteria are met.

Revaluation Model

The Bank has not applied the revaluation model to the any class of property, plant & equipment.
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Subsequent Cost

The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow
to the Bank and it can be reliably measured. The cost of day to day servicing of property, plant and equipment are
charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Freehold land is not depreciated although it is subject to impairment testing. Depreciation on other assets is
calculated using the straight- line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful
lives. Useful life of an assets is reviewed on yearly basis and estimated as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life

Freehold Buildings 50 years

Motor Vehicles 7 years

Furniture & Fixture 5 years

Office Equipment 5 years

Computer Hardware 5 years

Other Assets 7 years

Leasehold Improvements Lease Period or subject to maximum 15 years

Capital Work in Progress

These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major plant and machinery
and system development, awaiting capitalization. Capital work-in-progress would be transferred to the relevant
asset when it is available for use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management. Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

De-recognition

The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property,
plant and equipment is included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized. When
replacement costs are recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the remaining
carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.

3.8 Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Recognition

An in%angible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance, held for use in the production
or supply of goods or services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes. An intangible asset is recognized
if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost
of the asset can be measured reliably. An intangible asset is initially measured at cost. Expenditure incurred on an
intangible item that was initially recognized as an expense by the Bank in previous annual Financial Statements or
interim Financial Statements are not recognized as part of the cost of an intangible asset at a later date.

Computer Software & Licenses

Cost of purchased licenses and all computer software costs incurred, licensed for use by the Bank, which are not
integrally related to associated hardware, which can be clearly identified, reliably measured, and it’s probable that
they will lead to future economic benefits, are included in the Statement of Financial Position under the category
‘Intangible assets’ and carried at cost less accumulated amortization and any accumulated impairment losses.
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3.9

3.10

Subsequent Expenditure

Expenditure incurred on software is capitalized only when it is probable that this expenditure will enable the asset
to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this
expenditure can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expenditure is expensed as incurred.

Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization of Intangible Assets

Intangible Assets, except for goodwill, are amortized on a straight—line basis in the Statement of Profit or Loss from
the date when the asset is available for use, over the best of its useful economic life based on a pattern in which the
asset’s economic benefits are consumed by the bank. Amortization methods, useful lives, residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate. The Bank assumes that there is no residual value
for its intangible assets. Useful life of an assets is reviewed on yearly basis and estimated as follows:

Asset Category Useful Life
Computer Software 5 years
Licenses 5 years

De-recognition of Intangible Assets

The carrying amount of an item of intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising on de recognition of an item of intangible assets is included in
the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

Investment Property

Investment property is property (land or a building or part of a building or both) held (by the owner or by the lessee
under a finance lease) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both but not for sale in the ordinary course of
business.

Measurement

Investment property is accounted for under cost model in the financial statements. Accordingly, after recognition
as an asset, the property is carried at its cost, less impairment losses. If any property is reclassified to investment
property due to changes in its fair use, fair value of such property at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
subsequent accounting.

De-recognition

Investment properties are derecognized when they are disposed of or permanently withdrawn from use since no
future economic benefits are expected. Transfers are made to and from investment property only when there is a
change in use. When the use of a property changes such that it is reclassified as Property, Plant and Equipment, its
fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent accounting.

Assets held for sale and discontinued operations
Non-current assets (such as property) and disposal groups (including both the assets and liabilities of the disposal
groups) are classified as held for sale.

Assets held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell when: (i) their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through sale; (ii) they are available-for-sale in their present
condition; and (iii) their sale is highly probable.

Immediately before the initial classification as held for sale, the carrying amounts of the assets (or assets and
liabilities in a disposal group) are measured in accordance with the applicable accounting policies described above.
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3.11

3.12

3.13

Foreign Currencies

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
transaction date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are recognized in the statement
of profit and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated year-end at mid rates and the resulting foreign exchange gains
and losses (if any) are recognized in either the statement of profit and loss or shareholders’ equity depending on the
treatment of the gain or loss on the asset or liability.

Investment in Associates

Associates are those entities in which the Bank has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and
operating policies. Investments in associate entities are accounted for using the equity method (equity-accounted
investees) and are recognized initially at cost. The cost of the investment includes transaction costs. The Bank
doesn’t have any associates. The Bank considers that mere representation of the Bank in Board of Directors doesn’t
indicate significant influence.

Income Tax

As per Nepal Accounting Standard- NAS 12 (Income Taxes) tax expense is the aggregate amount included in
determination of profit or loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation. Income Tax expense is
recognized in the statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized directly in equity or
other comprehensive income in which case it is recognized in equity or in other comprehensive income. The
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to tax authorities.

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities consist of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue
Department in respect of the current year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. Current Tax is computed after making
necessary adjustment considering the provision of Income Tax Act 2058 and related rules in the profit computed
as per NFRS.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable
temporary differences except:

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and
unused tax losses (if any), to the extent that it is probable that the taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, carried forward unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except:

In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in Subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference will be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred
tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that
future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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3.14

3.15

3.16

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to income taxes imposed
by the same taxation authority.

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities are the Bank’s sources of funding. Deposits include
non-interest bearing deposits, saving deposits, term deposits, call deposits and margin deposits. The estimated fair
value of deposits with no stated maturity period is the amount repayable on demand. The fair value of fixed interest
bearing deposits is considered as the interest receivable on these deposits plus carrying amount of these deposits.
The fair value of debt securities issued is also considered as the carrying amount of these debt securities issued.
Sub-ordinated liabilities are liabilities subordinated, at the event of winding up, to the claims of depositors, debt
securities issued and other creditors.

Provisions

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. The amount recognized is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the reporting date, taking in to account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation at that date. Where
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is
determined based on the present value of those cash flows. A provision for onerous contracts is recognized when
the expected benefits to be derived by the Bank from a contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision is measured as the present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the expected net cost of continuing with the contract. Provision are not recognized for
future operating losses.

Before a provision is established, the Bank recognizes any impairment loss on the assets associated with that
contract. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of Profit or Loss net of any
reimbursement.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to Bank and the revenue
can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Interest Income

For all financial assets measured at amortized cost, interest bearing financial assets, interest income is recorded
using the rate that closely approximates the EIR without considering the transaction cost because the bank considers
that the cost of exact calculation of effective interest rate method exceeds the benefit that would be derived from
such compliance using the benefits provided by Institute of Chartered Accountant of Nepal (ICAN) through carve-
out of NFRS that allows not to include transaction cost if it is impracticable to determine transaction cost of all
previous years which is the part of effective interest rate. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

When a receivable is impaired, the Bank reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding the
discount as interest income. Interest income on impaired loans is recognized using the original closely approximate
EIR. A guideline issued by Nepal Rastra Bank has been considered while recognizing interest income.

LY
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Fee and Commission Income

Fees and Commissions are recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the bank expects to be
entitled in exchange for providing the services. The performance obligations, as well as the timing of their
satisfaction are identified, and determined, at the inception of the contract. Fees and Commissions from services
are recognized evenly over the period, based on time-elapsed where performance obligations are satisfied over
time. Where performance obligations are satisfied at a point in time, fees and commission are recognized typically
on completion of underlying service.

Fees and commission includes Loan management fee, service fee, consortium fee, commitment fee, Prepayment
fee, remittance commission, commission on LCs and guarantees etc. Loan syndication fees are recognized as
revenue when the syndication has been completed and the Bank retained no part of the loan package for itself, or
retained a part at the same effective interest rate as for the other participants. Portfolio and other management
advisory fees and service distribution fees are recognized based on the applicable contracts, on a time apportionment
basis.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is on equity instruments are recognized in the statement of profit and loss within other income
when the Bank’s right to receive payment is established.

Net Trading Income

Net trading income comprises gains less losses relating to trading assets and liabilities, and includes all realized
interest, dividend and foreign exchange differences as wells as unrealized changes in fair value of trading assets
and liabilities.

Net Income from other financial instrument at fair value through Profit or Loss

The bank has no income under the heading net income from other financial instrument at fair value through profit
or loss.

3.17 Interest Expense

For financial liabilities measured at amortized cost using the rate that closely approximates effective interest rate,
interest expense is recorded using such rate. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

3.18 Employee Benefits

Employee benefits include:

A. Short-term employee benefits such as the following, if expected to be settled wholly before twelve months
after the end of the annual reporting period in which the employees render the related services:
i. Wages, salaries and social security contributions;
ii. Paid annual leave and paid sick leave;
iii. Profit sharing and bonuses, and
iv. Non-monetary benefits (such as medical care, housing, cars and free or subsidized goods or services) for
current employees;

Short term employee benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is

provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid under short term cash bonus or profit sharing

plans if the Bank has present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided

by the employee and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

B. Post-employment benefits such as Retirement benefits (eg: Gratuity, Provident Fund etc ) and other post-
employment benefits such as post-employment life insurance and post-employment medical care;
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C. Other long term employee benefits such as accumulated Leave benefit
D. Termination benefits

Details of post employments benefits are as follows:

Defined Contribution Plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an Bank pays fixed contribution into a
separate Bank (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does
not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee services in the current and prior periods,
as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee Benefits).

The contribution payable by the employer to a defined contribution plan in proportion to the services rendered to
Bank by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘Personnel expense’ as and when they become due.
Unpaid contribution are recorded as a liability under ‘Other Liabilities’.

Bank contributed 10% on the salary of each employee to the Employees’ Provident Fund. The above expenses are
identified as contributions to ‘Defined Contribution Plans’ as defined in Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19
(Employee Benefits). In compliance with Labor Act 2074, provision is made for gratuity payable to employees who
joined bank on a permanent basis.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Accordingly, staff
gratuity has been considered as defined benefit plans as per Nepal Accounting Standards — NAS 19 (Employee
Benefits).

Gratuity

An actuarial valuation is carried out every year to ascertain the full liability under gratuity.

Bank’s obligation in respect of defined benefit obligation is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit
that employees have earned for their service in the current and prior periods and discounting that benefit to
determine its present value, then deducting the fair value of any plan assets to determine the net amount to be shown
in the Statement of Financial Position. The value of a defined benefit asset is restricted to the present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plan or reduction on the future contributions to the plan.
In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding
requirement that apply to any plan in Bank. An economic benefit is available to Bank if it is realizable during the
life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities.

Bank determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit liability at the beginning of the annual period to the defined benefit liability at the beginning of
the annual period. The discount rate is the yield at the reporting date on government bonds that have maturity dates
approximating to the terms of Bank’s obligations.

The increase in gratuity liabilities attributable to the services provided by employees during the year ended 16"
July, 2022 (current service cost) has been recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’
together with the net interest expense. Bank recognizes the total actuarial gain and loss that arises in calculating
Bank’s obligation in respect of gratuity in other comprehensive income during the period in which it occurs.

The demographic assumptions underlying the valuation are retirement age (58 years), early withdrawal from service
and retirement on medical grounds.

Details of liabilities for employees defined benefit obligations has been disclosed in notes 4.23.1 to 4.23.7.

4%
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Long Term Employee Benefits in the form of Unutilized Accumulated Leave

Bank’s liability towards the accumulated leave which is expected to be utilized beyond one year from the end of
the reporting period is treated as other long term employee benefits. Bank’s net obligation towards unutilized
accumulated leave is calculated by discounting the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return
for their service in the current and prior periods to determine the present value of such benefits. The discount rate
is the yield at the reporting date on government binds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of Bank’s
obligation. The calculation is performed using the Projected Unit Credit method using Actuarial valuation. Net
change in liability for unutilized accumulated leave including any actuarial gain and loss are recognized in the
Statement of Profit or Loss under ‘Personnel Expenses’ in the period in which they arise.

The amounts recognized in the statements of financial positions with respect to liabilities for defined benefit
obligation are as follows:

Defined Benefit Obligation

Particulars

FY 2078-79

Present value of unfunded obligations

Present value of funded obligations

784,159,176

Total present value of obligations

784,159,176

Fair value of plan assets 680,618,356
Present value of net obligations 103,540,820
Recognized liability for defined benefit obligations 103,540,820
Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations
Particulars FY 2078-79
Defined benefit obligations at Sawan 1 647,272,949
Actuarial (Gain)/losses 47,566,640

Benefits paid by the plan

(14,641,033)

Current service costs and interest

103,960,620

Defined benefit obligations at Asar end 784,159,176
Amount recognized in profit or loss (funded obligation)
Particulars FY 2078-79
Current service costs 56,013,410
Interest on obligation 47,947,210

Expected return on plan assets

Actuarial (gain)/loss related to other long term benefits

(41,642,680)

Total 62,317,940
Actuarial assumptions
Particulars FY 2078-79
Discount rate 8.50%
Expected return on plan asset 6.74%
Future salary increase 7.00%

Withdrawal rate

" Age below 35 years- 5.00%
Age above 35 years- 2.00% "

3.19 Employee Bonus
Employee bonus is calculated at the rate of 10% of Net Profit as per Bonus Act.
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3.20 Finance and Operating Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or it contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a
specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset.

3.20.1 Finance Lease

Agreements which transfer to counterparties substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership
of assets, but not necessarily legal title, are classified as finance lease. When Bank is the lessor under finance
lease, the amounts due under the leases, after deduction of unearned interest income, are included in ‘Loans to
& receivables from other customers’, as appropriate. Interest income receivable is recognized in ‘Net interest
income’ over the periods of the leases so as to give a constant rate of return on the net investment in the leases.
A finance lease and its corresponding liability are recognized initially at the fair value of the asset or if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Finance charges payable are recognized in ‘Interest expenses’
over the period of the lease based on the interest rate implicit in the lease so as to give a constant rate of interest
on the remaining balance of the liability

3.20.2 Operating Lease

All other leases are classified as operating leases. Bank has applied NFRS 16 —“Lease” from FY 2078-79 (FY
2021-22) whereas previously NAS 17 “Leases” was applied. Bank has opted NFRS 16 —Leases” standard
retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard recognized at the date of initial
application. It is not required to reinstate the comparative information. The bank has recognized the cumulative
effect of previously classified as operating lease as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at
the date of initial application. Right of Use (ROU) assets and lease liability has been recognized at the present
value of Lease rentals by discounting at the bank’s long term incremental borrowing cost. ROU assets has been
presented under ‘Property, plant and equipment’ as separate line items in notes 4.13 to the financial statements
and lease liability has been presented under separate line items under “Other Liabilities” in notes 4.23 to the
financial statements. Impairment losses are recognized to the extent that residual values are not fully recoverable
and the carrying value of the assets is thereby impaired.

Expenses under operating lease are calculated as per NFRS 16 which is the summation of depreciation of Right
of Use (ROU) Assets and interest expenses on lease liability. Depreciation for right of use assets has been
clubbed under depreciation on PPE as presented in noted 4.38 to the financial statements. Interest expenses on
lease liability has been presented in notes 4.30 under “other interest expenses” to the financial statements. Bank
has taken 8.5% as incremental borrowing cost to discount the lease rentals. However, for income tax purpose
the expenses has been claimed on actual payment basis.

;‘ Description Amount
1 | Depreciation charge for right-of-use assets by class of underlying asset 86,123,117
2 | Interest expense on lease liabilities 48,966,284
The expense relating to short-term leases accounted for applying paragraph 6. This -
3 | expense need not include the expense relating to leases with a lease term of one

month or less
The expense relating to low-value assets accounted for applying paragraph 6. This -
4 | expense shall not include the expense relating to short-term leases of low-value
assets included in paragraph 53(c)

The expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of

> | lease liabilities

6 | Income from subleasing right-of-use assets -
7 | Total cash outflow for leases 125,124,001
8 | Addition to right of use assets 122,215,992
9 | Gain or losses arising from sale and leaseback transaction -
10 The carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period by class | 829,832,023

of underlying asset

{c
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3.21

3.22

3.23

Foreign Currency Transactions, Translation and Balances
All foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, which is Nepalese Rupees, using the

exchange rates prevailing at the dates when the transactions were affected.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated to Nepalese
Rupees using the spot foreign exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary items in foreign currency measured
at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

Foreign exchange differences arising on the settlement or reporting of monetary items at rates different from those
which were initially recorded are dealt with in the Statement of Profit or Loss. However, foreign currency
differences arising on fair value through OCI equity instruments are recognized in other comprehensive income.

Financial guarantee and loan commitment

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due. Financial guarantee contracts
may have various legal forms, such as a guarantee, some types of letter of credit, etc. Where the bank has confirmed
its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form of loans, overdrafts, etc. whether
cancellable or not and the bank had not made payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these
financial statements as commitments.

Share capital and reserves

Share capital and reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual interest in
the assets of the entity after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in equity during the reporting period comprise
income and expenses recognized in the statement of financial performance; plus contributions from holders of
equity claims, minus distributions to holders of equity claims.

Equity Share Capital
Paid up share capital of the Bank has moved over the years as follows:

. . Cumulative Paid
Financial Year up Capital NPR Remarks
Capital of Bank of Kathmandu 2,671,467,500 Merger on 30 Ashad 2073
Limited
Capital of Lumbini Bank Limited 1,905,423,500
(adjusted for swap ratio)
2072-73 1,052,685,000 | Issue of Bonus Shares
5,629,576,000 Balance as at 32 Ashad 2073
2073-74 827,513,208 Issue of Bonus Shares
6,457,089,208 Balance as at 31 Ashad 2074
2074-75 615,806,700 | Share Auction
7,072,895,908 Balance as at 32 Ashad 2075
2075-76 990,205,427 Issue of Bonus Share
8,063,101,335 Balance as at 31 Ashad 2076
2076-77 483,786,080 Issue of Bonus Share
8,546,887,415 Balance as at 31 Ashad 2077
2077-78 1,111,289,014 Issue of Bonus Share
9,658,176,429 Balance as at 31 Ashad 2078
2078-79 965,817,643 Issue of Bonus Share
10,623,994,072 Balance as at 32 Ashad 2079
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Proposed Distributions (Dividends and Bonus Shares)

The Board has recommended 14.95 percent as cash dividend (NRs.1,588,287,113.76 ) and 6 percent stock dividend
(NRs. 637,439,644.32) for the reported year, FY 2078-79 (2021-22). This proposal of the board of directors is subject
to the approval from NRB and ratification by the Annual General meeting of the shareholders. The proposed
distribution shall be recognized in the equity in the period in which they are paid.

Statutory General Reserve

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 20% of the net profit to the general reserve until the reserve is twice
the paid up share capital and thereafter minimum 10% of the net profit. The reserve is the accumulation of setting
aside of profits over the years.

Exchange Fluctuation Fund

There is a regulatory requirement to set aside 25% of the foreign exchange revaluation gain on the translation of
foreign currency to the reporting currency. The reserve is the accumulation of such gains over the years. The bank
has transferred NPR 49.486 million to exchange fluctuation fund during the reported year.

Corporate social responsibility fund
There is a regulatory requirement to make a provision by appropriating the reserve equivalent to 1% of net profit for
the year. The details of Corporate Social Responsibility Fund is as below.

Particulars Amount in NPR
Profit for the year 2,322,542,474
Add : Appropriation from Profit during the year 23,225,425
Less : CSR Expense during the year (5,385,725)
Transferred to CSR Reserve for the FY 2078-79 17,839,700

During the FY 2078-79, the bank has expended under CSR as per details below.

Particulars Amount (Rs)

Education, Health, Environment Protection etc. 1,275,000
Financial Literacy 276,860
Direct Donation to Poor Families 100,000
Sustainable Development Goals -
Expenses related to protection, treatment to staff from COVID 19 3,044,200
Establishment of Child day care for staff -
Orphanage, Balmandir and Old-Age home (Non-professional) 100,000
Kholau Bank Khata Aviyan, 2076 (Rs. 100 contribution from bank -
for account opening)
Other 589,665

Total 5,385,725

CSR Fund movement during the FY 2078-79 is as presented below.

Particulars Amount
Opening CSR Fund 23,868,766
Transferred during the Year 17,839,700
Closing CSR Fund 41,708,466

Regulatory Reserve

The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the Bank to this reserve as per the Directive of NRB
for the purpose of implementation of NFRSs and which shall not be regarded as free for distribution of dividend
(cash as well as bonus shares) has been presented under this account head. As per NRB directives, any interest due
as on asadh end 2079 if recovered within Shrawan 15, 2079 (31* July 2022) can be adjusted to the amount transferred
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to regulatory reserve. The bank has transferred the amount to regulatory reserve after adjusting interest recovered
amounting to Rs.122.02 million. The details of regulatory reserve is as under:

Rs. in €000
Particulars/FY 2074-75 | 2075-76 2076-77 2077-78 | 2078-79 Total

Interest Receivable 68,009 47,821 175,402 | (58,668) 89,193 321,756
Short Loan Loss Provision
Short Provision for possible Losses 2,202 (2,202)
on Investment
Short Provision on NBA 24,658 (9,123) 15,535
Deferred Tax Asset
Goodwill
Bargain Purchase Gain
Actuarial Loss recognized 45,956 16,603 (17,283) 45,585 41,223 132,084
Fair Value Loss Recognized in OCI
Other
Total 140,825 62,223 148,995 | (13,083) 130,415 | 469,375

Fair Value Reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are measured at
fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the assets are
derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets is presented as fair value
reserve.

Other reserves

Other reserve includes:

Employee’s Training Fund: There is regulatory requirement to make a provision to employee training fund
equivalent to 3% of staffs Salary and allowance. Bank has transferred Rs. 15.28 million during FY 2078-79.

Capital Redemption Reserve: 600,000 units having face value NPR 1000 per unit worth Rs. 600 million with
maturity of 7 years “8% BOK Debenture 2079 had been matured on June 27, 2022. Upon repayment of bond amount
(Principal and interest) to bondholder, the amount is transferred from capital redemption reserve to capital reserve
which is available for distribution to shareholder as bonus share.

The bank had issued 8.5% BOK Debenture — 2086 worth NPR 1.6 billion on December 23, 2020 having a maturity
period of 10 years. The debenture has been considered in credit to deposit ratio (CD Ratio) as resource mobilization
and not included in capital. Therefore Capital Redemption reserve is not required to appropriate from net profits as
per NRB directive.

Contingent Reserve: Contingent Reserve has been created for guarantees on which claim was made against the
bank but were unpaid due to pending litigation.

The detail of other reserves which is presented under schedule 4.27 Reserve.

Particulars Ashad 2079
Contingent Reserve 10,961,884
Staff Skill Development Fund 41,380,621
Capital Expenditure Reserve 15,656,665
Other Free Reserve
Total 67,999,170
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3.24

3.25

3.26

3.27

3.28

Earnings per share

Bank presents basic and diluted Earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of Bank by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting both the profit and loss
attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, for the
effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Earnings Per Ordinary Share Agl;;)gngzl:)ig Asad End 2079 Asaz%l;;i nd
Profit Attributable to ordinary Shareholders 2,331,658,734 2,322,542.,474 1,726,409,471
Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 106,239,940 106,239,940 96,581,764
Basic Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs) 21.95 21.86 17.88
Adjusted Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs)
Diluted Earnings per Ordinary Share (Rs) 21.95 21.86 17.88

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of an entity:

e That engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues
and expenses relating to transactions with other components of the same entity),

e Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions
about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and

e For which discrete financial information is available.

Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, a
corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only
incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be operating segments.

The bank has identified the key segments of business on the basis of nature of operations that assists the Executive
Committee of the bank in decision making process and to allocate the resources. It will help the management to
assess the performance of the business segments. The bank has categorized its segment on the basis of presence in
the geographical provinces of the country.

Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

The Bank assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Bank estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

Dividend on Ordinary Shares

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized as a liability and deducted from equity when they are approved by the
Bank’s shareholders. Dividend for the year that is approved after the reporting date is disclosed as an event after
the reporting date.

Cash Flow Statement
The cash flow statement has been prepared using ‘The Direct Method’, whereby gross cash receipts and gross cash
payments of operating activities, finance activities and investing activities have been recognized.

%R
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3.29 Use of Carve out for financial assets
a. For Impairment Calculation

An entity shall assess at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets measured at amortized cost is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the entity
shall apply paragraph 5 of NFRS 9 - Financial Instruments, to determine the amount of any impairment loss
unless the entity is bank or financial institutions registered as per Bank and Financial Institutions Act, 2073.
Bank and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment loss on loan and advances as higher of amount
derived as per prudential norms prescribed by Nepal Rastra Bank and amount determined as per paragraph 5.5.
However, bank and financial institutions shall apply paragraph 5.5 of NFRS 9: Financial Instruments, to
determine the amount of impairment loss on financial assets other than loan and advances. Impairment as per
NRB is presented under schedule 4.6 and 4.7.

Loan and Advances to Impairment As per Impairment as per | Excess/(deficit) over
customer NRB Directives NFRS 9 NFRS 9
Individual Impairment 704,371,584 633,642,118 70,729,466
Collective Impairment 1,681,488,480 735,511,655 945,976,825
Total 2,385,860,064 1,369,153,773 1,016,706,291

b. For Using Effective Interest rate

During the reporting period Bank has used the exemption for not calculating Interest Income using Effective
Interest Rate (EIR) as Bank has considered such calculation to be impracticable. Accordingly, Bank has used
Normal interest rate to charge interest income. NFRS 9 Para 5.4 requires when a financial asset or a group of
similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is thereafter
recognized using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The Bank has not considered fees and transaction cost being immaterial. The interest income
has been calculated using EIR. Interest income on loans and advances that are overdue for more than one year
are not recognized as Interest income citing the recoverability of such amount.

3.30 Comparative Figures
The comparative figures and phrases have been rearranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s
presentation which has been disclosed as required.
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5.1

Bank of Kathmandu Limited

Disclosure and Additional Information
Year ended 16 July 2022

Risk Management

Qualitative Disclosures

Risk is inherent in the Bank’s activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement
and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. The Revised Capital Adequacy Framework (under BASEL
IIT) provides distinct approaches for computing capital requirements in relation to credit risk, operational risk and
market risk. The process of risk management is critical to the Bank’s continuing profitability and each individual
within the Bank is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Bank is mainly
exposed to;

1. Credit Risk

2. Liquidity Risk

3. Market Risk

4. Operational Risk

Risk Management Framework

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank’s risk management
framework. The Board has delegated its authority to Integrated Risk Management Department (IRMD), headed by
Chief Risk Officer, which is responsible for developing and monitoring Bank’s risk management policies.

The Bank’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Bank, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor adherence to established limits. Risk management policies and
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The Bank,
through its training and management standards and procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined
and constructive control environment, in which all employees are assigned and made to understand their respective
roles and responsibilities.

Credit Risk
The Risk Management Committee of the Bank reviews overall risk factor of the Bank on quarterly basis and forward
recommendations to the Board.

I. Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is one of the major risks of the bank. The main function of Credit Risk Management is to optimize return
while adjusting risks within pre-determined limit. For effective management of credit risk the Bank has developed
BOK Credit Policy, various internal credit circulars and product papers, credit authority structure to delegate credit
approval authority properly; which are reviewed on periodic basis to incorporate required changes. Credit risk is
managed by various units at different levels (pre and post credit disbursal) in order to address and report perceived
and anticipated credit risk at various levels:

I. Central Credit Risk: The risk officers ensure that in-house policies, product papers, NRB directives and
circulars have been duly complied with while processing credit application by relationship managers and the
risks identified are properly dealt with and appropriate risk control mechanism has been adopted to mitigate
such risk.

II. Central Credit Operations: The unit is responsible for credit disbursement and settlement, credit
administration and credit monitoring and supervision.

The operation unit disburses and settles loans, prepares and furnishes various credit reports such as loan
disbursement and collection report, counterparty concentration risk report, economic sector concentration risk
report and loan provision report that enable bank's management to monitor quality of credit portfolio, take
proactive measures as well as remedial measures promptly.
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III. Central Credit Documentation & Administration: The credit documentation & administration department
performs the function of credit documentation, its adequacy, preparation and revision of legal and security
documents. The unit is responsible to ensure that all legal documents are valid, complete, properly
documented, obtained and updated on time. The unit records the detail of legal documents in Security Register
Maintenance (SRM), an inbuilt database.

The unit is also responsible for safety of legal and security documents for which register has been maintained
to keep proper track of their movement. It also facilitates relationship managers with comprehensive credit
information report of a borrower for prudent decision making. The unit also performs the function of collecting
financial statements, stock statement, insurance policies and conducting physical inspection of project financed
and stock at regular intervals. It generates and furnishes Irregularity Return Report (IRR) on monthly basis
that depicts the status of credit relationship in relation to expired/expiring annual review and insurance policy,
net current asset position, financial statements and stock inspection report.

Despite several efforts to manage credit risk it is likely that some of the relationship turns out to be
unproductive hence in order to diligently handle such problematic relationship, the Bank has a separate
Recovery Unit to manage such credit accounts which mainly focuses on determining action plan and recovery
strategy.

Credit Risk Mitigation (CRM)

The Bank has extensive policy and guidelines to mitigate credit risks. The Bank’s credit policy has strengthened
minimizing credit risk and provided support to make qualitative analysis based on sound credit principles and
procedures. Bank has a policy to consider as security for pledge, hypothecated or mortgage which have value
considering physical control and legal title.

Bank has considered eligible CRM as prescribed by Capital Adequacy standard. Collateral taken as Deposit with
own Bank, Deposit with other BFIs, National Saving & Development Bonds, and Gold & Silver have been
considered as CRM and adjusted on overall risk weighted exposure on credit risk in line with the standard.

Collateral and other Credit Enhancements

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the counterparty.
Guidelines are in place covering the acceptability and valuation of each type of collateral.

The main types of collateral obtained are, as follows:

> For commercial lending, charge over real estate properties, inventory and trade receivables

> For retail lending, mortgage over residential properties

Management monitors the market value of collateral and will request additional collateral in accordance with the
underlying agreement. It is the Bank’s policy to dispose of repossessed properties in an orderly fashion. The
proceeds are used to reduce or repay the outstanding claim. In general, the Bank does not occupy repossessed
properties for Business use.

Credit Risk

Credit quality by class of financial asset

The Bank manages the credit quality of financial assets using internal credit ratings. The table below
shows the credit quality by class of asset for all financial assets exposed to credit risk, based on the Bank’s
internal credit rating system. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances
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Definition of Past Due

The bank has followed Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank for classification of loans and advances:

CLASSIFICATION Asadh 2079 Asadh 2078 Movement
Good 96,192,271,499 89,578,435,661 6,613,835,838
Watch list 9,550,597,437 7,444,761,308 2,105,836,129
Restructuring/Rescheduling 97,401,059 - 97,401,059
Sub standard 365,586,306 254,184,607 111,401,699
Doubtful 161,274,179 178,135,609 (16,861,430)
Bad 538,178,226 1,574,948,733 (1,036,770,507)
TOTAL 106,905,308,706 99,030,465,918 7,874,842,788
Industry Analysis
The following table shows the risk concentration of Loans & Advances of the bank by industry:
Loans and Receivables (Gross loans) Asadh 2079 Asadh 2078
Agricultural and Forest Related 5,111,587,370 4,230,609,873
Fishery Related 103,307,582 74,723,391
Mining Related 29,134,666 23,526,576
Agriculture, Forestry & Beverage 7,716,728,375 8,247,239,970

Non-food Production Related

16,407,850,185

14,144,324,288

Construction 673,459,759 4,118,988,701
Power, Gas and Water 5,834,651,948 4,927,172,510
Metal Products, Machinary & Electronic Equipment & Assemblage 2,917,267,737 2,728,356,533

Transport, Communication and Public Utilities

4,750,123,907

2,221,722,000

Wholesaler & Retailer

27,466,782,030

24,474,532,148

Finance, Insurance and Real Estate

9,262,975,406

9,159,439,868

Hotel or Restaurant

6,491,761,829

5,568,616,773

Other Services

5,884,079,026

7,171,413,313

Consumption Loans

13,873,877,527

6,980,831,673

Local Government

Others

381,721,359

4,958,968,301

Total

106,905,308,706

99,030,465,918

Liquidity Risk & Funding management

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Hence the bank may be unable to meet its payment obligations
when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstances. To limit this risk, management has arranged
diversified funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing
assets with liquidity in mind and of monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The bank has
developed internal control processes and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an
assessment of expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure
additional funding if required.

The Bank maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event
of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The Bank also has committed lines of credit that could be
utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the Bank maintains a statutory deposit with the Nepal Rastra Bank equal
to 5.04% of customer local deposits. In accordance with the bank’s policy, the liquidity position is assessed and
managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration to stress factors relating to both the market in
general and specific to the Bank. The most important of these is to maintain the required ratio of liquid assets to
liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, short—term bank deposits and liquid
debt securities available for immediate sale. Further the Statutory Liquid Ratio of the Bank for the month of Ashadh
32 2079 was 18.40%.

RS

AZZAT ATk Fiqas J09s /R



N IF AF FISHIUE fdAtAcE
7 BANK OF KATHMANDU LTD.

Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by remaining contractual maturities
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Bank’s financial assets and

liabilities as at Ashadh 32 2079. Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given
immediately. However, the Bank expects that many customers will not request repayment on the earliest date it
could be required to pay and the table does not reflect the expected cash flows indicated by its deposit retention

history.

Contractual maturities of financial assets & liabilities

Financial
Assets

1-90 Days

91-180 Days

181-270 Days

271-365 Days

Over 1 Year

Total Amount

Cash Balance

2,335,204,560

2,335,204,560

Balance at
Bank &
Financial
Institutions

8,228,901,703

8,228,901,703

Loans &
Advances to
Customers

29,499,697,524

15,510,805,908

9,622,241,676

4,202,467,872

49,555,024,827

108,390,237,807

Financial
Investments -
Available for
Sale

1,863,596,463

1,863,596,463

Financial
Investments -
Held to
Maturity

3,808,056,083

2,143,645,450

2,611,900,850

1,790,900,698

9,100,925,000

19,455,428,081

Other
Financial
Assets

290,144,562

176,038,632

191,751,014

657,934,208

Total
undiscounted
Assets

46,025,600,895

17,654,451,358

12,410,181,158

6,185,119,584

58,655,949,827

140,931,302,822

Financial
Liabilities

1-90 Days

91-180 Days

181-270 Days

271-365 Days

Over 1 Year

Total Amount

Due to Banks
and Financial
Institution

1,518,493,355

1,518,493,355

Due to
Customers

31,014,792,925

10,768,511,720

10,080,060,543

7,005,348,630

50,574,727,399

109,443,441,217

Debts Issued
& Other
Borrowed
Funds

598,131,584

3,698,757,877

1,914,000,000

2,873,346,677

9,084,236,138

Unclaimed
Dividend

141,979,287

141,979,287

Other
Financial
Liabilities

1,128,675,596

103,540,820

670,154,077

1,902,370,493

Total
Undiscounted
Liabilities

34,402,072,747

14,570,810,417

10,080,060,543

8,919,348,630

54,118,228,153

122,090,520,490

Net Financial
Assets/
(Liabilities)

11,623,528,148

3,083,640,941

2,330,120,615

(2,734,229,046)

4,537,721,674

18,840,782,332

Cumulative
Net Financial
Assets
/(Liabilities)

11,623,528,148

14,707,169,089

17,037,289,704

14,303,060,658

18,840,782,332
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Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes
in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates, commodity prices and equity prices. The bank
classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those
portfolios separately.

Bank has an Asset Liability Management Committee (ALCO) which meets periodically to discuss product pricing
for deposits and advances and maturity profiles of assets and liabilities, articulating interest rate, view of bank,
funding policy, transfer pricing policy and balance sheet management.

The internal audit department is an independent from the Bank's management; this unit focuses on development of
internal procedures and check and control systems / procedures. The internal audit unit undertakes a comprehensive
audit of all business groups and other functions, in accordance with the approved audit plan. In order to mitigate
above risks, further this unit function is also independent with separate reporting lines, with audit function reporting
directly to the Board level audit committee. The internal audit has adopted risk based audit approach.

The Bank has been working continuously towards risk diversification of its assets base so as to achieve better
portfolio mix and to protect/enhance the overall risk on its loan book. The strategic focus of mapping business is
gradually reducing high-risk assets and increasing low risk exposures.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
Fair value is a market-based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities,

observable market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable
market transactions and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value
measurement in both cases is the same — to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the asset or to
transfer the liability would take place between market participants at the measurement date under current market
conditions (i.e. an exit price at the measurement date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the
asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

Level 1-

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level
1 inputs.

Level 2-
Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3-

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value
hierarchy:

2078-2079 2077-2078
Particulars Level I | Level IT | Level III | Level I | Level I1 | Level III
Financial Investments Available for Sale
Quoted Equities 1,753,099,789 1,821,041,594
Unquoted Equities 70,692,900 65,116,100
Quoted Mutual Funds 39,803,774 86,128,833
Total 1,792,903,563 70,692,900 | 1,907,170,427 - 65,116,100
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Interest Rate Risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair

values of financial instruments. The bank’s policy is to continuously monitor positions on a daily basis and hedging
strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within prudential levels.

Bank has 'Assets and Liabilities Management Committee' (ALCO) which monitors the interest rate risk on
quarterly basis or as and when required and takes necessary decisions to manage the risk. The committee
periodically monitors and adjusts interest rates on Loans and Deposits according to the rules & regulations, Bank's
appetite and local market situation.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Devaluation and revaluation of foreign currencies against each other and local currency are the major risks
associated with foreign exchange management. The Treasury department constantly monitors the foreign
currencies rates in foreign exchange markets through Reuters and buy/sell accordingly to avoid exchange loss and
optimize exchange gains.

The Bank has set foreign currencies' position limits to monitor and manage foreign currencies position within the
prescribed limits. Authorities of dealers for various dealing activities have been clearly defined and amended as
and when required.

The Bank has separate Treasury Back Office for control and check & balance purpose. Treasury front office does
all the dealings whereas settlements, system transactions and reporting is done by the back office.

Operational Risk Management
Operational risk remains the most difficult risk category to quantify. In order to identify and assess the operational

risk inherent in product, activities, processes and systems the Bank has circulars, guidelines and policies to address
various risk areas that are reviewed or amended periodically. Periodic trainings of such guidelines and circulars
are also being conducted to communicate the processes and risks at all levels.

To prevent major internal risks, the Bank has set authority list and limits to each official for any transaction. Cash
holding limit is specified in each branch which is reviewed periodically. Transaction and access limits to each
employee are well defined. The access level and limit are updated immediately if there are changes in functional
areas of the employee. With an objective to minimize the irregularities associated while an operations, Policies,
Compliance and Operations Risk department of the Bank has been monitoring the operational risks through
Operations Irregularity Return report on regular basis.

In order to strengthen the customer data base, Bank has built the mechanism whereby alert has been marked in
customer account for KYC (Know Your Customer) update in certain frequency. Regular training on KYC and
AML is conducted at all level on regular basis.

Systems back up for hardware and software being used are well kept to ensure integrity and availability of
information. Bank has set up its Disaster Recovery Site in Bhairahawa to be able to operate as a going concern in
the event of business disruption. With an objective to minimize operational risks associated with Information
Technology and for effective management of Information system, the Bank has outsourced the platform for data
management at Data Hub Pvt. Ltd, Thapathali.

Bank has been making continuous effort to strengthen Management Information System (MIS). Reports are being
developed under MIS platform thus facilitating easy access and close monitoring.
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Bank's Internal Audit department carries out inspection at regular intervals to check that all policies and guidelines
are complied with. In addition to regular internal audit and compliance checks, regional office also carries out an
independent checks and reviews in the branches to ensure that standard procedures at all levels are implemented.

5.2 Capital Management
(i) Qualitative Disclosures

The Bank’s policy is to maintain sufficient capital to sustain and support future development of the business. The
Bank’s capital management is intended to ensure that there is capital sufficient to support the underlying risks of
the Bank’s business activities and to maintain a well-capitalized status under regulatory requirements.

The Bank’s capital management framework includes a comprehensive internal capital adequacy assessment
process (ICAAP) conducted quarterly which determines the adequate level of capitalization for the Bank to meet
regulatory norms and current and future business needs, including under stress scenarios.

Stress testing is carried out to review the impact of extreme but plausible scenarios on the Bank’s risk profile and
capital position. Based on the stress testing framework, the Bank conducts stress tests on its various portfolios and
assesses the impact on its capital adequacy ratio and the adequacy of capital buffers for current and future periods.

ICAAP and stress testing is reviewed by Risk Management committee of the bank.

(ii) Quantitative Disclosures

1. Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy
Tier 1 capital and a breakdown of its components

SN Particulars Group BOK
A | Core Capital (Tier 1) 16,419,104,427 16,268,799,293
1 Paid up Equity Share Capital 10,623,994,072 10,623,994,072
2 | Share Premium - -
3 | Proposed Bonus Equity Shares - -
4 Statutory General Reserves 3,707,001,984 3,703,664,906
5 | Retained Earnings 1,638,747,306 1,628,417,642
6 | Un-audited current year cumulative profit - -
7 | Capital Redemption Reserve - -
8 | Capital Adjustment Reserve - -
9 | Debenture Redemption Reserve 600,000,000 600,000,000
10 | Dividend Equalization Reserves - -
11 | Bargain Purchase Gain - -
12 | Other Free Reserve 164,075 164,075
13 | Less: Goodwill (2,193,273) -
14 | Less: Intangible Assets (31,335,425) (30,275,893)
15 | Less: Fictitious Assets - -
16 | Less: Investment in equity in licensed Financial Institutions - -
17 | Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests - (140,000,000)
18 | Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits (10,919,412) (10,919,412)
19 | Less: Investments arising out of underwriting commitments - -
20 | Less: Reciprocal crossholdings - -
21 | Less: Purchase of land & building in excess of limit and - -
unutilized
22 | Less: Cash Flow Hedge - -
23 | Less: Defined Benefit Pension Assets - -
24 | Less: Un recognized Defined Benefit Pension Liabilities - -
25 | Less: Negative Balances of reserve accounts (106,354,899) (106,246,096)
26 | Less: Other Deductions - -
03 gl A FhaaeT 005/
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Tier 2 capital and a breakdown of its components

SN Particulars Group BOK
B Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,351,764,306 1,351,764,306
1 Cumulative and/or Redeemable Preference Share - -
2 Unsecured Subordinated Term Debt - -
4 Hybrid Capital Instruments - -
5 General Loan Loss Provision 1,218,153,877 1,218,153,877
6 Exchange Fluctuation Reserve 122,648,545 122,648,545
7 Investment Adjustment Reserve - -
8 Assets Revaluation Reserve - -
9 Other Reserves 10,961,884 10,961,884
10 Reserve for Capital Expenditure - -

Deductions from capital

SN Particulars Group BOK
1 Goodwill 2,193,273 -
2 Intangible Assets 31,335,425 30,275,893
3 Negative Balances of reserve accounts 106,354,899 106,246,096
4 Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits 10,919,412 10,919,412
5 Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests - 140,000,000
Total 150,803,009 287,441,401

Total Qualifying Capital

SN Particulars Group BOK
1 Core Capital (Tier 1) 16,419,104,427 | 16,268,799,293
2 Supplementary Capital (Tier 2) 1,351,764,306 1,351,764,306

TOTAL

17,770,868,733

17,620,563,599

Detailed information about the Subordinated Term Debts with information on the outstanding amount,
maturity, and amount raised during the year and amount eligible to be reckoned as capital funds.

The bank had issued “BOK Debenture, 2086 amounting to NPR 1.6 billion as Subordinated Term Debt in
Poush 2077. Bank has not pledged any securities while issuing BOK debenture. The debenture has the following

features:

Bond Validity Period : 10 year
Bond Maturity Date : Dec 22, 2030
Coupon Interest Rate : 8.5% p.a.

Interest Payment Period : Bi-annually (in every six months of Nepali Calendar)
Interest Payment Timing : Interest is paid on the 1st day of Magh and Shrawan
BOK debenture can be pledged with other banks and financial institutions to avail loan facility.

BOK debenture is listed with Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd.

BOK debenture is included in CD ratio as resource mobilization therefore it is not part of capital.
BOK debenture holders will have rights of claim only after the depositors in case of liquidation.

Capital adequacy ratio (Group) 13.24%
Capital adequacy ratio (Bank) 13.15%
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Summary of the bank’s internal approach to assess the adequacy of its capital to support current and future
activities, if applicable

The Bank also takes into consideration these risk factors during assessment of ICAAP. The Banks' Internal Capital
Adequacy Assessment Process (ICAAP) involves assessment of actual capital adequacy of the Bank, additional
capital requirement in relation to the existing risk profile of the Bank and additional capital requirement in relation
to the business growth of the Bank.

The Bank has ICAAP Policy approved by the Board, to ensure the Bank possess adequate capital resources in
commensuration with all the material risks posed to it by its operating activities and evaluate its ability to hold
capital in excess of the minimum regulatory capital adequacy ratio. To this regard, the Risk Management
Committee of the Bank reviews ICAAP on quarterly basis to ascertain the adequacy of current available capital in
relation to the regulatory requirement, current risk profile and growth prospect of the Bank.

The Bank prepares annual budget plan and computes capital adequacy ratio in order to assess the adequacy of
capital for the required growth. The Bank on monthly basis reviews the performance report and the capital
adequacy ratio.

Furthermore, the Bank also prepares long term capital plan as a part of strategic plan. The capital plan is reviewed
to ensure that the financial result attained is in line with the capital plan devised. Based on the actual figures, if the

Bank feels that the figures could deviate significantly, the Bank revises its long term plan.

2. Risk Exposures

Risk Weighted Exposures for Credit Risk, Market Risk & Operational Risks

RISK WEIGHTED EXPOSURES

Group

BOK

A Risk Weighted Exposure for Credit Risk 122,848,086,498 | 122,670,229,122
B Risk Weighted Exposure for Operational Risk 6,278,956,579 6,241,029,978
C Risk Weighted Exposure for Market Risk 108,566,691 108,566,691
Total (a+b+c) 129,235,609,767 | 129,019,825,791

Adjustments under Pillar II

6.4a(7) | gross income.

SRP Add RWE equivalent to reciprocal of capital charge of 3 % of

1,085,365,723

1,073,354,273

SRP Overall risk management policies and procedures are not
6.4a(9) | satisfactory. Add 3% of RWE

3,877,068,293

3,870,594,774

Total Risk Weighted Exposures (After Bank's adjustment for Pillar II)

134,198,043,784

133,963,774,838

Total Tier I Capital Fund

16,419,104,427

16,268,799,293

Total Capital Fund

17,770,868,733

17,620,563,599

Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.23% 12.14%
Total Tier 1 Capital to Total Risk Weighted Exposures 12.23% 12.14%
Total Capital Fund to Total Risk Weighted Exposure 13.24% 13.15%
Risk Weighted Exposures under each of 13 categories of Credit Risk

SN Particulars Group BOK

1 | Claims on government & central bank - -

2 | Claims on other official entities 229,607,050 229,607,050

3 | Claims on banks 2,154,372,397 2,119,088,804

4 | Claims on domestic corporate and securities firms 72,076,424,884 | 72,076,424,884

5 | Claims on regulatory retail portfolio 6,450,116,602 6,450,116,602

6 | Claims secured by residential properties 1,751,174,995 1,751,174,995

7 | Claims secured by commercial real estate 1,379,389,913 1,379,389,913

8 | Past due claims 4,525,832,238 4,525,832,238

9 | High risk claims 17,224,261,092 | 17,224,261,092

10 | Lending against securities (bonds & shares) 1,978,567,725 1,978,567,725

11 | Trust Receipt Loans for Trading Firms 1,433,877,736 1,433,877,736

12 | Other assets 4,876,103,428 4,733,529,644

13 | Off balance sheet items 8,768,358,440 8,768,358,440

TOTAL 122,848,086,498 | 122,670,229,122
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Amount of NPAs (Both Gross and Net) as per NRB Directives

SN | Loan Classification Gross Amount Provision Held Net Amount

1 Restructured/ Rescheduled Loan 97,401,059 12,175,132 85,225,927

2 Substandard Loan 365,586,306 83,829,967 281,756,339

3 Doubtful Loan 161,274,179 78,768,824 82,505,355

4 Bad Loan 538,178,226 529,597,660 8,580,566
TOTAL 1,162,439,770 704,371,583 458,068,187

Compliance with external requirement
The bank has complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reporting period.

5.3 Classification of Financial assets & financial liabilities

Fair value Fair value
Financial Assets Amortized Cost | through other | through profit Total
comprehensive or loss
income
Cash in hand 2,335,204,560 2,335,204,560
Balances with B/FIs 2,659,747,015 2,659,747,015

Money at call and short notice

400,153,205

400,153,205

Interbank placement

2,073,815,024

2,073,815,024

Balance at NRB

5,569,154,688

5,569,154,688

Derivative financial instrument

Loans & Advances

108,390,237,807

108,390,237,807

Government bonds

11,849,663,195

11,849,663,195

Government treasury bills

5,131,796,657

5,131,796,657

Equity investments

1,863,596,463

1,863,596,463

Other assets 657,934,208 657,934,208
Total Financial Assets 139,067,706,359 | 1,863,596,463 - | 140,931,302,822
Fair value through profit or loss
Financial Liabilities Amortized Cost (FVTPL) Total
Held for Designated at
trading FVTPL

Deposits from customers

110,961,934,572

110,961,934,572

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank

4,285,528,847

4,285,528,847

Derivative financial instrument

24,004,243

24,004,243

Borrowing

3,198,719,813

3,198,719,813

Debt Securities

1,599,987,478

1,599,987,478

Employee related liabilities 587,340,956 587,340,956
Bills payable 6,790,955 6,790,955
Creditors and accruals 127,394,172 127,394,172
Interest payable on deposit 53,626,078 53,626,078
Unpaid Dividend 141,979,287 141,979,287
Other liabilities 1,103,214,089 1,103,214,089
Total Financial Liabilities 122,090,520,490 - - | 122,090,520,490
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5.4 Operating Segment Information

1. General information

(a) The bank has categorized its segment on the basis of presence in the geographical provinces of the country.
(b) Each segment provides commercial banking services such as corporate and retail lending, deprived sector

lending, various deposit products and transaction banking services.

2. Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities

Particulars Province 1 Province 2 Province 3 Province 4 Province 5 Province 6 Province 7 Total

a |Revenues from external customers | 1,162,075542 | 817,641,327 5893466 | 297577570 | 1675975105 | 119,909,627 | 565,299,555 | 4,644372,192
b |Intersegment revenues (477.816,880)| (289,173,769)|  1,699,222,079 |  (91,047671)  (606,928,149)|  (29,912,814)] (204,342,796)
¢ |Net Revenue 684,258,662 | 528467558 | 1,705,115545| 206529899 | 1,069,046956 | 89,996,813 | 360,956,759 | 4,644372,192
d [Interest revenue 846,096,178 | 766,705,955 | 9,374,518,650 | 379778802 | 1747115022 | 159,165,167 | 519,792,975 | 13,793,172,949
e |Interest expense 657,000,574 | 545371858 | 6,751,981,488 |  2683894,106 | 1,300909,548 | 99,867,442 | 367,320,032 | 9,991,345,048
f |Net interest revenue 189,095,604 | 221,334,097 | 2,622,537,162 | 110,884,696 446,205,674 59,297,725 | 152,472,943 |  3,801,827,901
g |Depreciation and amortization 12,327,659 12,107,046 142,904,258 8,468,392 26,561,152 3,594,239 7,647,004 213,610,250
h [Segment profit /(loss) 545,767,804 | 368,851,365 [ 1,309,043,749 | 103478848 703,068037 |  46,239911| 251,702,600 | 3,328,152,314

Entity's interest in the profit or

loss of associates accounted for
| using equity method
j |Other material non-cash items: - -
k {Impairment of assets (36/493988)| 16128411 |  (899430415)| 22,670,698 74,496,591 6,647,748 7,629,654  (808,351,301)
| |Segment assets 8,567,938,390 | 7,224,587432 | 97,534,032,754 | 4,152,347,389 | 16,750,220,009 | 1,444.879,986 | 5,231,869,592 | 140,905875,552
m (Segment liabilities 3,255,54,831 | 4353,476,134 | 97,523,244,396 | 3,213,036,078 | 10,079,973307 | 1,238,846,741 | 2,899,649,809 | 122,563481,296

3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

on the transfer pricing mechanism prevailing for the respective reporting periods.

4. Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

(a) Revenue

Total revenues for reportable segment

Other revenues

Elimination of intersegment revenues

Entity’s revenues

(b) Profit or loss

Total profit or loss for reportable segments

Other profit or loss

Elimination of intersegment profits

Unallocated amounts:

Profit before income tax

4,644,372,192

4,644,372,192

3,328,152,314

3,328,152,314

The transaction between the branches are charged at transfer price decided by Asset Liability Management
Committee of the bank.

The transfer pricing mechanism of the Bank is periodically reviewed. The segment results are determined based

q0%
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5.6

(c) Assets

Total assets for reportable segments 140,905,875,552
Other assets

Unallocated amounts

Entity’s assets 140,905,875,552
(d) Liabilities

Total liabilities for reportable segments 122,563,481,296
Other liabilities

Unallocated liabilities

Entity’s liabilities 122,563,481,296

5. Information about products and services

Revenue from each type of product and services described in point no. 1(b) above
(a) Loans and advances

(b) Fees and Commission income

6. Information about geographical areas

Revenue from following geographical areas

(a) Domestic 4,644,372,192
Province 1 684,258,662
Province 2 528,467,558
Province 3 1,705,115,545
Province 4 206,529,899
Province 5 1,069,046,956
Province 6 89,996,813
Province 7 360,956,759

(b) Foreign -
Total 4,644,372,192

7. Information about major customers
Total revenue from any single external customer does not amount to 10 percent or more of the bank's revenue.

Share options and share based payment

A share-based payment is a transaction in which the bank receives goods or services either as consideration for its
equity instruments or by incurring liabilities for amounts based on the price of the entity's shares or other equity
instruments of the entity. The bank does not have any share option and share based payment.

Contingent liabilities and commitment

Contingent Liabilities:

Where the Bank undertakes to make a payment on behalf of its customers for guarantees issued, such as for
performance bonds or as irrevocable letters of credit as part of the Bank’s transaction banking business for which
an obligation to make a payment has not arisen at the reporting date, those are included in these financial
statements as contingent liabilities.

Other contingent liabilities primarily include revocable letters of credit and bonds issued on behalf of customers
to customs, for bids or offers.
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Commitments:

Where the Bank has confirmed its intention to provide funds to a customer or on behalf of a customer in the form
of loans, overdrafts, future guarantees, whether cancellable or not, or letters of credit and the Bank has not made
payments at the reporting date, those instruments are included in these financial statement as commitments.

Please refer Note No. 4.28 to 4.28.5 for the detail of contingent liabilities and commitments as at 16" July 2022.

Litigations:

Litigations are anticipated in the context of business operations due to the nature of the transactions involved. The
Bank and the Group are involved in various such legal actions and the controls have been established to deal with
such legal claims. There are pending litigations existing as at the end of the reporting period against the Bank,
resulting through normal business operations.

The details of litigations are mentioned in 4.28.5.

5.7 Related parties disclosures
The Bank has carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis at commercial
rates with parties who are defined as related parties as per the Nepal Accounting Standard - NAS 24 - ‘Related
Party Disclosures’, except for the transactions that Key Management Personnel (KMPs) have availed under
schemes uniformly applicable to all staff at concessionary rates. Those transactions include lending activities,
acceptance of deposits, Off-Balance Sheet transactions and provision of other banking and finance services.
Key Management Personnel of the Bank include Chief Executive Officer and members of the Board of Directors
of the Bank as at Ashad End 2079 are as follows:
Mr. Prakash Shrestha - Chairman, Promoter
Mr. Radhesh Pant - Director, Promoter
Mr. Bijay Kumar Shrestha - Director, Promoter
Mr. Govinda Prasad Sharma - Director, Public
Mr. Madan Lal Joshi - Director, Public
Mrs. Amrita Upreti - Director, Public
Mrs. Mohana Lohani - Independent Director
Mr. Shrawan Lal Maskay - Chief Executive Officer
Employee Provident Fund (EPF) had sent Mr. Bijay Kumar Shrestha as representative Director in place of
Mr. Jitendra Dhital from 2078-05-31 BS.
Compensation to Key Management Personnel of the Bank (CEQO)
Categories FY 2078-79
a) Short-term employee benefits 21,797,552.29
b) Post-employment benefits 15,926,407.38
¢) Other long-term benefits Nil
d) Termination benefits Nil
e) Share-based benefits Nil
Total 37,723,959.67
In addition to the above, a company vehicle has been provided to the Chief Executive Officer.
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The tenure of Mr. Shovan Dev Pant had completed on August 17, 2021. As per the decision of 199" Board of
Director’s meeting held on August 15, 2021, Board had appointed Mr. Shrawan Lal Maskay as Acting Chief
Executive Officer with effect from August 18, 2021. He was confirmed to CEO on 3™ November 2021 (2078-07-
17 BS) as per the decision of 207" Board of Director’s meeting held on 3™ November 2021 (2078-07-17 BS).

Transaction with Key Management Personnel of the Bank (Board of Directors):
The following provides transactions between the Bank and Key Management Personnel of the Bank during the

year.
Nature of Transaction Ashad End 2079

Meeting Allowances 4,460,000

Other Allowances 1,344,000

Transaction with subsidiary

(i)  The bank had invested NPR 140 Million in equity shares in BOK Capital Market Ltd. as a subsidiary holding
two third of its paid up capital on 29" November 2017. Subsidiary held deposit balance of NPR 198.72
Million in its account with the bank as on Ashad end 2079. The bank has paid net interest of NPR 4.08
million during the period. Bank has paid fee of NPR 50,000.00 for debenture registrar and NPR 243,333.30
for share registrar during the fiscal year to B.O.K. Capital Market Ltd. for providing services to the bank’s
debenture holder and shareholders respectively. BOK Capital Market limited has been provided NPR 137.85
million as advance to pay the dividend to the banks’ shareholder whose dividend remains unpaid.

(ii) Bank received 30% of DP income from BOK Capital Market limited as per CDSC By laws Annexure -14.
Bank has received Rs.4.15 million as DP Fee from BOK Capital Market limited during the year.

5.8 Merger and acquisition

The bank has entered into merger and signed Memorandum of understanding (MOU) with Global IME bank
Limited on 2" Ashad 2079 (16" June 2022).

5.9 Additional disclosures of non-consolidated entities
The bank has no any investment in any entities which requires consolidation as per applicable NFRS nor any
investment in associates which needs to be pooled in the financial statement of the bank

5.10 Interim reports
Interim reports corresponding to the financial statements reported had been reported in accordance with the
regulatory reporting requirements. Those statements have been published.

5.11 Events after reporting period
Bank has own legal battle in china against Chaina Construction Bank to recover the claim against counter guarantee
which had provide by the bank to the Melamchi Projects in Nepal. The amount has been received on 23™ August
2022.
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5.12 Comparison on Unaudited and Audited Financial Statements as of FY 2078/79

Rs. in '000
Statement of Financial Position As on Asadh End 2079 Variance
o Al;lgitKed Un;g(li(ited In amount] In % Reasons for Variance

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5,395,105 5,395,105 - 0.00%

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 5,569,155 5,569,155 - 0.00%

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 2,073,815 2,073,815 - 0.00%

Derivative Financial Instruments - - - 0.00%

Other Trading Assets 103,732 103,732 - 0.00%

Loans and Advances to BFIs 2,423,645 2,423,645 - 0.00%
Write Back of Provision and Recognizing Interest

Loans and Advances to Customers 103,580,733 | 102,511,150 | 1,069,583 1.04%|Income as per NRB Guidelines on Interest Income
due to write back of Provision.

Investment Securities 18,845,056 | 18,845,056 - 0.00%

Current Tax Assets 63,339 282,273 | (218,934)| -77.56%| Tax impact

Investment in Subsidiaries 140,000 140,000 - 0.00%

Investment in Associates - - - 0.00%

Investment Property 42,398 42,398 - 0.00%
Right of Use (ROU) assets was presented under other

Property and Equipment 1,382,310 896,763 485,547 54.14%|liabilities in unaudited financials with net of lease
liability

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 30,276 30,276 - 0.00%

Deferred Tax Assets - - - 0.00%

Other Assets 1,256,312 1,256,123 189 0.02%

Total Assets 140,905,876 | 139,569,491 | 1,336,385 0.96% | Due to above impact

Liabilities -

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 1,518,493 1,518,493 - 0.00%

Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4,285,529 4,285,529 - 0.00%

Derivative Financial Instruments 24,004 24,004 - 0.00%

Deposits from Customers 109,443,441 | 109,443,441 - 0.00%

Borrowings 3,198,720 3,198,720 - 0.00%

Current Tax Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Provisions 15,166 15,166 - 0.00%

Deferred Tax Liabilities 457,795 453,704 4,091 0.90%
Due to changes in Bonus Amount, ROU was
presented net of lease liability in unaudited financials

Other Liabilities 2,020,346 1,208,448 811,898 67.19%|and now ROU is presented under PPE & Provision of
Interest to be refunded to customer.

Debt Securities Issued 1,599,987 1,599,987 - 0.00%

Subordinated Liabilities - - - 0.00%

Total Liabilities 122,563,481 | 121,747,492 | 815,989 0.67%

Equity

Share Capital 10,623,994 | 10,623,994 - 0.00%

Share Premium - - - 0.00%

Retained Eamings 1,628,418 | 1,300,943 | 327475 | 25.17% }5;::0 Changes in Net Profit and Appropriations of

Reserves 6,089,983 5,897,062 192,921 3.27%| Due to changes in appropriation of profit

Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 18,342,395 17,821,999 520,396 2.92%| Due to above impact

Non Controlling Interest - - - 0.00%

Total Equity 18,342,395 | 17,821,999 520,396 2.92%| Due to above impact

Total Liabilities and Equity 140,905,876 | 139,569,491 | 1,336,385 0.96% | Due to above impact

110
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During the year ended

Variance
Asadh end 2079 q
Statement of Profit or Loss Reasons for Variance
Audited | Unaudited In amount| In %
BOK BOK ’

Due to recovery of Bad Loans,Interest income

Interest income 11303383 | 11480.604 | (186.311)|  -1.620|c080ized as per NRB Guidelines on Interest income

e e ? ’ and provision of Interest to be refuneded to customer

Due to Reclassification of heading of Interest

Interest expense 7,501,555 7,452,589 48,966 0.66% |expenses on Lease liability which was presented in
Office Operating expenses in unaudited financial.

Net Interest Income 3,801,828 4,037,105 | (235,277) -5.83% | Due to above impact

Fee and Commission Income 639,005 639,112 (107) -0.02%

Fee and Commission Expense 104,144 100,906 3,238 3.219,| Reclassification of heading and Addition of
Expenses

Net Fee and Commission Income 534,861 538,206 (3,345)|  -0.62%

Net Interest, Fee and Commisson Income 4,336,689 | 4,575,311 | (238,622)| -5.22%| Due to above impact

Net Trading Income 193,878 193,878 - 0.00%

i , s , .50%| Revaluataion Gain on Foreign currenc

Other Operating Income 113,805 74,141 39,664 |  53.50%| Revaluataion Gain on Foreign y

Total Operating Income 4,644,372 4,843,330 | (198,958)( -4.11%)| Due to above impact

Impai t Charge/ (R 1) for L

(;Tt‘g:r“gfstesc argef (Reversal for Loans and (808,351) 146,695 | (955,046)| -651.04%] Due to write back of Provision

Net Operating Income 5,452,723 4,696,635 756,088 16.10% | Due to above impact

Personnel Expenses 1,427,909 1,346,772 81,137 6.02%| Due to changes in Bonus Amount
Interest Expenses on lease liability and Depreciation
on ROU has been presented under Interest expenses
and Depreciation schedule respectively.

Other Operating Expenses 545,027 688,006 [ (142,979) -20.78%
Depreciation on Right of Use (ROU) asset which was

Depreciation & Amortisation 213,610 127,487 86,123 67.55% |presented under Office Operating expenses in
unaduited financials

Operating Profit 3,266,177 2,534,370 | 731,807 28.88% | Due to above impact

Non Operating Income 69,198 65,333 3,865 5.92%| Reclassification of heading

Non Operating Expense 7,223 3,358 3,865 115.10%| Reclassification of heading

Profit Before Income Tax 3,328,152 2,596,345 731,807 28.19% | Due to above impact

Income Tax Expense

Current Tax 998,503 779,567 218,936 28.08%| Tax impact of income and expenses
Deferred Tax 7,107 6,501 606 9.32%| Changes in DTL
Profit/(Loss) for the Period 2,322,542 1,810,277 512,265 28.30% | Due to above impact
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5.13 4th Quarter End of Fiscal Year 2078/79

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position As on Quarter ended 32nd Asadh 2079

Particular Group Bank
I diat
This Quarter Immediate Previous This Quarter m'm ediate
Assets . . . Previous Year
Ending Year Ending Ending .
Ending

Cash and cash equivalent

5,465,402,315

3,072,181,748

5,395,104,780

2,994,913,385

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 5,569,154,688 6,974,370,534 5,569,154,688 6,974,370,534
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 2,207,915,024 2,850,371,263 2,073,815,024 2,721,371,263
Derivative Financial Instruments - 32,542,196 - 32,542,196
Other Trading Assets 159,748,354 103,973,156 103,731,700 42,205,542

Loans and Advances to BFIs

2,423,644,591

3,170,507,595

2,423,644,591

3,170,507,595

Loan and advances to customers

102,511,149,583

93,808,156,142

102,511,149,583

93,808,156,142

Investments Securities

18,897,810,315

20,129,057,338

18,845,056,315

20,123,057,338

Current Tax Assets 284,125,781 196,526,441 282,273,071 194,366,289
Investment in Subsidiaries - - 140,000,000 140,000,000
Investment in Associates - - - -
Investment Property 42,398,147 24,658,425 42,398,147 24,658,425
Property and Equipment 905,208,669 837,750,212 896,762,752 828,870,392
Goodwill and intangible assets 33,528,698 37,514,568 30,275,893 34,933,588
Deferred Tax Assets - - - -
Other assets 1,265,231,471 897,983,739 1,256,124,195 891,762,100
Total Assets 139,765,317,636 132,135,593,357 139,569,490,739 | 131,981,714,789
Liabilities

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions 1,518,493,355 910,961,586 1,518,493,355 910,961,586
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank 4,285,528,847 6,059,017,627 4,285,528,847 6,059,017,627

Derivative Financial Instruments.

24,004,243

24,004,243

Deposits from Customers

109,275,339,155

103,401,073,774

109,443,441,217

103,413,430,203

Borrowings

3,198,719,813

1,198,244,359

3,198,719,813

1,198,244,359

Current Tax Liabilities

Provisions 15,166,185 13,766,664 15,166,185 13,766,664
Deferred Tax Liabilities 452,488,768 501,838,916 453,704,046 497,733,848
Other Liabilities 1,478,298,568 1,123,886,496 1,208,446,899 1,080,118,013

Debt Securities Issued

1,599,987,478

2,289,160,049

1,599,987,478

2,289,160,049

Subordinated Liabilities

Total Liabilities 121,848,026,412 115,497,949,471 121,747,492,083 | 115,462,432,349
Equity -
Share Capital 10,623,994,072 9,658,176,429 10,623,994,072 9,658,176,429

Share Premium

Retained Earnings

1,315,611,176

1,387,866,159

1,300,943,232

1,357,818,963

Reserves 5,899,986,211 5,506,211,907 5,897,061,352 5,503,287,048
Total Equity Attributable to Equity Holders 17,839,591,459 16,552,254,495 17,821,998,656 | 16,519,282,440
Non Controlling Interest 77,699,765 85,389,391 - -

Total Equity 17,917,291,224 16,637,643,886 17,821,998,656 | 16,519,282,440
Total Liabilities and Equity 139,765,317,636 132,135,593,357 139,569,490,739 | 131,981,714,789
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? BANK OF KATHMANDU LTD.

Principal Indicators

n N FY 2078-79 | FY 2077-78 | FY 2076-77 | FY 2075-76 | FY 2074-75
(FY 21/22) | (FY 20/21) | (FY 19/20) | (FY 18/19) | (FY 17/18)

1 | Net Profit/Gross Income 18.85% 17.94% 13.39% 17.59% 14.22%
2 | Net Profit/Operating Income 50.01% 40.70% 32.91% 40.69% 33.74%
3 | Earnings Per Share 21.86 17.88 17.09 23.53 19.46
4 | Market Value Per Share 227.1 379 219 255 265

5 | Price Earnings Ratio 10.39 21.20 12.81 10.84 13.62
6 | Dividend (including bonus) on Share Capital 20.95% 14.00% 16.00% 17.00% 25.00%
7 | Cash Dividend on Share Capital 14.95% 4.00% 3.00% 11.00% 11.00%

8 | Interest Income/ Loan and Advances 9.73% 7.99% 11.40% 11.83% 11.79%
9 | Staff Expenses/ Total Operating Expenses 55.08% 53.38% 54.81% 62.56% 65.39%
10 | Interest Expenses/ Total Deposit & 6.41% 5.09% 7.14% 7.14% 6.81%

Borrowing

11 | Exchange Gain/ Total Income 1.97% 3.29% 3.01% 7.11% 6.16%
12 | Staff Bonus/ Total Staff Expenses 34.95% 32.34% 26.66% 26.65% 20.42%
13 | Net Profit/ Loan and Advances 2.26% 1.92% 1.86% 2.50% 1.95%
14 | Net Profit/ Total Assets 1.65% 1.31% 1.33% 1.88% 1.45%
15 | Total Credit/ Deposit 96.34% 94.79% 87.25% 91.70% 87.92%
16 | Total Operating Expenses/ Total Assets 1.36% 1.24% 1.46% 1.84% 1.73%
17 | Adequacy of Capital Fund on Risk Weighted 13.15% 14.16% 14.16% 14.30% 14.88%

Assets

18 | Liquidity (CRR) 3.96% 5.34% 11.39% 6.92% 7.30%
19 | Non-performing credit/ Total Credit 1.09% 1.04% 2.28% 1.54% 3.04%
20 | Base Rate 9.83% 7.44% 8.71% 9.98% 10.67%
21 | Weighted Average Interest Rate Spread 3.61% 3.03% 3.81% 4.40% 4.98%
22 | Book Net-worth per share 172.65 171.04 167.14 173.21 176.25
23 | Total Shares 106,239,940 | 96,581,764 | 85,468,874 | 80,631,014 | 70,728,959
24 | Total Staff 936 831 822 776 779

CA. Chandra Raj Sharma Shrawan Lal Maskay

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer

Prakash Shrestha Radhesh Pant Bijay Kumar Shrestha

Chairman Director Director

Madan Lal Joshi Govinda Prasad Sharma As per our report of even date

Director Director

Amrita Upreti Mohana Lohani CA. Aman Uprety

Director Director Partner

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
Date : 16™ October 2022
Place : Kathmandu
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SAR.

ASSOCIATES

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Shareholders of B.0Q.K. Capital Market Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the B.0O.K. Capital Market Limited (the “"Company”), which
comprise the statement of financial position as at Ashadh 32, 2079 (July 16, 2022), and the statement of
profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements presents fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Company as at 32 Ashad, 2079 (16 July 2022), and of its financial performance
and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our Report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the
ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Nepal, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and ICAN’s Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants. We Dbelieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in the
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of
the audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the
key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

S.N. | Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

1 Revenue Recognition Our audit approach regarding verification of
The revenue of the company has to be | Process of interest recognition included:
recognized on accrual basis. Revenue is

a. Understanding and evaluating the controls

derived from multiple service offerings being and processes over the recording of
initial and annual fees, commission income revenue in system level and control in
and other income as disclosed in note 14 to place for manual processes. We also
the financial statement. assessed the revenue recognition policies
3 adogted by the group for compliance with

A8 m: pat of our_ns_k Jagsessient, we have the Eelevagt accc)guntiﬁg slandafds.
considered each individual revenue stream .

.| and determined that a significant risk exists in | b. Obtaining the detailed breakup revenue
respect of recognition of income under all from individual stream and reconciled the
material revenue streams, being RTS fees, DP same with general ledger and financial
commission income, advisory fee, PMS fee statements.

and other related fees. Revenue may also be
misstated due to errors in system calculations
or manual processes.

¢. We reviewed the contracts, wherever
applicable to ensure whether revenue as
per contract is recognized or not.

d. We performed risk-based target testing of
revenue journals posted into the general
ledger which included identification of
those journals posted to rev p;r;_’éfi?;l‘gich did
not follow expected postin$ ﬁ{@\i’;\

T+97714420807 /08 /10 F +97714440528 E info@sarcornrp kY /
S

Address 64 Bishal Basti "Ka", Bishal Nagar, GPO Box 4585, Kathmandu, Nepoﬁ%&"/
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2. Information Technology  General | Our audit approach regarding Information
Controls technology of the company is included:

IT controls with respect to recording of .
transactions, generating various reports in | 2. Understanding the coding system adopted
compliance with SEBON guidelines and other | by the company for various categories of
compliances to regulators is an important part customers

of the process. Such reporting is highly |, ynderstanding the feeding of the data in
Eiepender_lt on the effective working of the the system and going through the
information systems used. extraction of the financial information and
We have considered this as key audit matter statements from the IT system existing in
as any control lapses, validation failures, the company

incorrect input data and wrong extraction of | ¢ Reviewing the reports generated by the
data may result in wrong reporting of data to system on sample basis. We also verified
the management, shareholders and regulators the income booking under various revenue
stream on test basis with the system.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion., Reasonable assurance is high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatement can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtained audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of ,
internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal contrcl relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purposes of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management,

¢ Conclude on the appropriateness of the management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or if such s are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenceyi to the date of our
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auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue
as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentaﬁon, structure, and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes pubic disclosure about the matter or when, extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on the requirements of Company Act, 2063

We have obtained satisfactory information and explanations asked for, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit; the returns received from the
Company were adequate for the purpose of the audit; the financial statements including the statement of
financial position, statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes
in equity, statement of cash flows including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes have been prepared in all material respect in accordance with the provisions of the
Company Act, 2063, and they are in agreement with the books of accounts of the Company; and the
accounts and records of the Company are properly maintained in accordance with the prevailing laws.

To the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, in the course of our audit,
we observed the business of the Company was conducted satisfactorily, and the Company's transactions
were found to be within the scope of its authority. We did not come across cases of accounting related
fraud and the cases where the board of directors or any director or any office bearer of the Company has
acted contrasy he provisions of law or caused loss or damage to the Company or committed any
misappropfi e funds of Company. .

Aman Uprety
Partner

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal
Date: September 23, 2022

UDIN No.: 220923CA00451CjG13
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B.O.K Capital Market Limited

Statement of Financial Position

as of Ashad end 2079

Assets Notes 32nd Ashad 2079 31st Ashad 2078
Cash and Cash Equivalent 1 74,535,278 89,624,792
Financial Assets at Amortized Cost 2 353,354,000 135,000,000
Financial Assets at FVTPL 3 44,275,800 61,767,614
Financial Assets at FVTOCI 4 - -
Right Of Use Asset 5 17,829,287 -
Current tax assets 7 - 2,160,152
Property and equipment 6 8,451,952 8,879,820
Goodwill and Intangible assets 6a 1,059,532 387,707
Deferred tax assets 15 4,297,578 -
Current Assets 8 13,905,635 6,221,639
Total Assets 517,709,062 304,041,724
Liabilites
Borrowings - -
Current Tax Liabilities 7 2,364,350 -
Provisions - -
Lease Liability 9 19,215,201 -
Deferred tax liabilities - 4,105,068
Liability for Defined Benefit Plans 10 2,145,906 1,502,236
Other liabilities 11 266,436,044 42,266,246
Total Liabilities 290,161,501 47,873,550
Equity
Share capital 12 210,000,000 210,000,000
Retained earnings 13 12,204,587 41,780,885
Reserves 14 5,342,974 4,387,288
Total equity attributable to equity holders 227,547,561 256,168,174
Non-controlling interest
Total equity 227,547,561 256,168,174
Total liabilities and equity 517,709,062 304,041,724

As per our report of even date

Sanju Karki

Incharge-Accounts Chief Executive

Anil Ratna Tuladhar

Mahesh Mishra

Officer Chairman

Chandra Raj Sharma

Director Director

Date: September 23, 2022
Place: Kathmandu

Deepak Gautam

Rabindra Ballav Panta
Director

Aman Uprety
Partner
S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

IR
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B.O.K Capital Market Limited

Statement of Profit or Loss
for the Year Ended 32 Ashad 2079

Particulars Notes Current Year Previous Year
Income
Fee and Commission Income 16 32,292,522 39,345,591
Fee and Commission Expenses 17 (7,879,554) (7,933,720)
Net Fee and Commission Income 24,412,968 31,411,871
Net Trading Income 18 (11,805,693) 37,068,772
Interest Income 19 20,386,154 11,123,487
Other Operating Income 20 53,904 1,511,030
Net Operating Income 8,634,365 49,703,288
Net Income 33,047,333 81,115,159
Expenses
Employee Benefits 21 (10,629,238) (14,565,613)
Other Operating Expenses 22 (4,857,414) (7,300,295)
Depreciaiton and Amortization Expenses 23 (2,260,510) (1,785,735)
Depreciation on Right-of-use Asset 5 (1,981,032) -
Finance Cost on Lease Liability 24 (1,661,615) -
Operating Profits 11,657,524 57,463,515
Non-Operating Income/Expenses - (183.,432)
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 11,657,524 57,280,083
Income tax expense 26 (2,541,264) (17,663,571)
Current Tax (10,923,723) (14,987,464)
Deferred Tax 8,382,459 (2,676,107)
Profit for the period 9,116,260 39,616,512
As per our report of even date
Sanju Karki Anil Ratna Tuladhar Mahesh Mishra Aman Uprety
Incharge-Accounts Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner

Chandra Raj Sharma
Director

Date: September 23, 2022
Place: Kathmandu

Deepak Gautam
Director

Rabindra Ballav Panta
Director

S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
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B.O.K Capital Market Limited

Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

as of Ashad end 2079
Particulars Current Previous
Year Year
Profit or loss for the period 9,116,260 39,616,512
Other comprehensive income
a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
-Gains/(losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value -
-Gain/(loss) on revaluation -
-Actuarial gain/loss on defined benefit plans (67,290) (178,840)
-Income tax relating to above items 20,187 53,652
Net other compressive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (47,103) (125,188)
b) Items that are or may be reclassified to profit or loss
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of income tax (47,103) (125,188)
Total Comprehensive Income for the period 9,069,157 | 39,491,324
Profit attributable to:
Equity holders 9,069,157 | 39491324
Non-controlling interest - -
Total 9,069,157 | 39,491,324

Anil Ratna Tuladhar
Chief Executive Officer

Sanju Karki
Incharge-Accounts

Chandra Raj Sharma
Director

Deepak Gautam
Director

Date: September 23, 2022
Place: Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

Mahesh Mishra
Chairman

Aman Uprety
Partner
S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants

Rabindra Ballav Panta
Director
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B.O.K Capital Market Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
For the Period (16th July 2021 to 16th July 2022) ended 32nd Ashad 2079

q Non-
Particulars Sha.re Retal,n ed SUEl Other Total controlling | Total equity
Capital earning Reserve reserve .
interest
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2076 210,000,000 8,173,546 218,173,546 218,173,546
Adjustment for Previous year profits 346,312 346,312 346,312
Profit for the period 1,323,402 1,323,402 1,323,402
Other Comprehensive income - 6,295,078 6,295,078 6,295,078
Total comprehensive income 9,843,260 - 6,295,078 | 226,138,338 226,138,338
Contributions from and distributions to owners
Share issued
Share based payments
General Reserve (132,340) 132,340
Dividends to equity holders
Bonus shares issued
Cash dividend paid
Corporate Social Responsilbility (13,234) 13,234
Total contributions by and distributions - (145,574) 132,340 13,234 - - 226,138,338
Balance at 31st Ashad end 2077 210,000,000 9,697,685 132,340 6,308,312 | 226,138,338 - 226,138,338
Balance at Sawan 1, 2077 210,000,000 9,697,685 132,340 6,308,312 | 226,138,338 - 226,138,338
Adjustment for Previous year profits (11,488) (11,488) (11,488)
Profit for the period 39,616,512 39,616,512 39,616,512
Other Comprehensive income (125,188) (125,188) (125,188)
Total comprehensive income 49,302,709 132,340 6,183,124 | 265,618,174 - 265,618,174
Contributions from and distributions to owners
Share issued
Share based payments
General Reserve (3,961,651)| 3,961,651 - -
Dividends to equity holders - -
Bonus shares issued - -
Cash dividend paid (9,450,000) - (9,450,000) (9,450,000)
Corporate Social Responsilbility (396,165) 396,165 - -
Transfer From Other Reserve (2,693,997) 2,693,997 - -
Transfer From OCI 8,979,989 (8,979,989) - -
Total contributions by and distributions - (7,521,824)| 3,961,651 (5,889,827)] (9,450,000) - (9,450,000)
Balance at 31st Ashad end 2078 210,000,000 41,780,885 | 4,093,991 293,297 | 256,168,174 - 256,168,174
Balance at Shrawan 1, 2078 210,000,000 41,780,885 | 4,093,991 293,297 | 256,168,174 - 256,168,174
Adjustment for Previous year profits 110,231 110,231 110,231
Profit for the period 9,116,260 9,116,260 9,116,260
Other Comprehensive income (47,103) (47,103) (47,103)
Total comprehensive income 51,007,376 | 4,093,991 246,194 | 265,347,561 - 265,347,561
Contributions from and distributions to owners - -
Share issued - -
Share based payments - -
General Reserve (911,626.00)] 911,626 - - -
Dividends to equity holders - - - -
Bonus shares issued - - - - -
Cash dividend paid (37,800,000.00) - - (37,800,000) (37,800,000)
Corporate Social Responsilbility (91,163.00) - 91,163 - -
Transfer From Other Reserve - - - -
Transfer From OCI - - - -
Total contributions by and distributions - (38,802,789)] 911,626 91,163 | (37,800,000) - (37,800,000)
Balance at 32nd Ashad end 2079 210,000,000 12,204,587 | 5,005,617 337,357 | 227,547,561 - 227,547,561
As per our report of even date
Sanju Karki Anil Ratna Tuladhar Mahesh Mishra Aman Uprety
Incharge-Accounts Chief Executive Officer Chairman Partner
S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
Chandra Raj Sharma Deepak Gautam Rabindra Ballav Panta
Director Director Director

Date: September 23, 2022
Place: Kathmandu
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B.O.K Capital Market Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Period (16th July 2021 to 16th July 2022) ended 32nd Ashad 2079

Particular Current Year Corr?sponding
Previous Year
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 11,225,298 11,111,998
Fees and other income received 32,954,890 37,416,720
Divided received 1,600,137 256,311
Receipts from other operating activities 11,179,225 31,107,777
Interest paid - -
Commission and fees paid (7,879,554) (7,933,720)
Cash payment to employees (10,629,238) (7,724,931)
Other expense paid (4,857,414) (7,300,295)
a(:;i:z:;zgl:aa;:igg:vs before changes in operating 33,593,344 56,933,860
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank
Placement with bank and financial institutions (218,354,000) (113,000,000)
Investment Securities (7,039,337) (31,401,926)
Loan and advances to bank and financial institutions
Loans and advances to customers
Other assets (18,885,596) (3,593,445)
(244,278,933) (147,995,371)
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities
Due to bank and financial institutions
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank
Deposit from customers
Borrowings
Other liabilities 242,299,763 (13,681,927)
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid 31,614,174 (104,743,438)
Income taxes paid (6,399,221) (13,952,597)
Net cash flow from operating activities 25,214,954 (118,696,034)
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Particular

Corresponding

Current Year .
Previous Year

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of investment securities

Receipts from sale of investment securities

164,467,101

Purchase of property and equipment

(1,533,153) (7,373,514)

Receipt from the sale of property and equipment

3,293,000

Purchase of intangible assets

(971,314)

Receipt from the sale of intangible assets

Purchase of investment properties

Receipt from the sale of investment properties

Interest received

Dividend received

Net cash used in investing activities

(2,504,467) 160,386,587

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Receipt from issue of debt securities

Repayment of debt securities

Receipt from issue of subordinated liabilities

Repayment of subordinated liabilities

Receipt from issue of shares

Dividends paid

(37,800,000) (9,450,000)

Interest paid

Other receipt/payment

Net cash from financing activities

(37,800,000) (9,450,000)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(15,089,514) 32,240,553

Cash and cash equivalents at Sawan 1, 2078.

89,624,792 57,384,239

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held

Cash and cash equivalents at 32 Ashad 2079

74,535,278 89,624,792

Sanju Karki Anil Ratna Tuladhar
Incharge-Accounts Chief Executive Officer
Chandra Raj Sharma Deepak Gautam

Director Director

Date: September 23, 2022
Place: Kathmandu

As per our report of even date

Mahesh Mishra Aman Uprety
Chairman Partner
S.A.R. Associates
Chartered Accountants
Rabindra Ballav Panta
Director
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